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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. Welcome to today's hearing. Thank you for

          4  your time with us today. My name is Joe Addabbo, I

          5  chair the Civil Service and Labor Committee, and I'm

          6  joined today by Joel Rivera, Chairman of the Health

          7  Committee.

          8                 Today's Committee oversight hearing

          9  will discuss the status of access to medical care to

         10  uniformed City employees involved in the efforts

         11  during and after the terrorist attack on the World

         12  Trade Center.

         13                 This is our third hearing on this

         14  topic by this Committee, and today, again, I am

         15  happily joined by the Health Committee Chair.

         16                 Today we will discuss the medical

         17  monitoring and treatment of our City employees and

         18  update and progress made in implementing the

         19  recommendations of the Mayor's World Trade Center

         20  Health Panel.

         21                 It is estimated that 100,000 workers

         22  and volunteers participated in the rescue, recovery

         23  and clean-up on and after September 11th.

         24                 I would also like to take this

         25  opportunity to thank all those who were involved in
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          2  that endeavor. We thank them very much.

          3                 We also thank all our City employees

          4  and workers, again, uniformed workers who were

          5  there. Each and every day we thank them for their

          6  undying dedication and commitment. So, thank you

          7  very much.

          8                 Many studies have shown that exposure

          9  to the World Trade Center event on or after

         10  September 11th resulted in a variety of mental and

         11  physical problems. It may not be known for many

         12  years what other conditions may have been caused by

         13  September 11th-related exposure.

         14                 Various programs have been created to

         15  screen, monitor and treat those exposed to World

         16  Trade Center toxins, and we will discuss them today

         17  at the hearing.

         18                 In the past, some of the issues this

         19  Committee addressed were the lack of paid time off

         20  evaluation of City workers, gaps in health insurance

         21  coverage, pension issues, line of duty coverage, and

         22  a different treatment amongst the City agencies.

         23                 This Committee will continue to

         24  address these issues and others now and in the

         25  future.
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          2                 Today we will also discuss the World

          3  Trade Center Health Panel and its recommendations.

          4  And perhaps the most critical issue involving the

          5  health issues of the 9/11 tragedy is the federal

          6  funding to monitor and treat physical and mental

          7  health-related issues from 9/11.

          8                 This issue is most critical because

          9  it rightfully recognizes September 11th, not only as

         10  a City tragedy, but as it rightfully should be known

         11  as a national tragedy. So, we will discuss the

         12  several bills introduced in Congress, including the

         13  9/11 heroes Health Improvement Act of 2007, and the

         14  9/11 Health and Compensation Act.

         15                 These hearings are important in order

         16  to ascertain what is being done on the City level

         17  and what still needs to be done on the City level,

         18  and through each hearing attempt to make some sense

         19  of progress for the lives of those who are ill due

         20  to September 11th and for their families.

         21                 As mentioned today, we are glad to be

         22  joined for the first time by the Health Committee. I

         23  want to thank my colleague, Joel Rivera, for being

         24  here today, and at this point, Council Member

         25  Rivera.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

          3  much, Chairman.

          4                 Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.

          5  My name is Joel Rivera. I'm the Chair of the Health

          6  Committee in the City Council. Today I am privileged

          7  to join my co-chair over here, Council Member

          8  Addabbo, in discussing the medical care and the

          9  benefits of the uniformed City workers who

         10  participated in the rescue and the recovery and the

         11  clean-up of the World Trade Center after September

         12  11th.

         13                 We are humbled by the great sacrifice

         14  made by the courageous men and women who risked

         15  their health and even their lives to respond to the

         16  terrorist attacks.

         17                 Now, a little more than six years

         18  later, we as a City and as a nation must do

         19  everything we can to ensure that these individuals

         20  are well cared for.

         21                 A large number of people who

         22  participated in the operation of the World Trade

         23  Center, or who lived, worked or attended school in

         24  the area, have been plagued by a variety of medical

         25  problems.
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          2                 Some of these problems went away

          3  within the first couple of years after the City

          4  attacks, but other symptoms have lingered or

          5  worsened. In some cases new diseases have developed.

          6                 Some illnesses may not show

          7  themselves for many years. That is why it is crucial

          8  for the City, the State and the federal government

          9  to put in place quality medical monitoring and

         10  treatment programs now.

         11                 We must also make certain that the

         12  funding will exist to support these programs. If we

         13  act now, we will ensure that the police sources will

         14  be there to help these valued members of our society

         15  cope with what may come in the future.

         16                 Many good efforts have already been

         17  made. I applaud the Mayor for making progress on

         18  many of the recommendations of the World Trade

         19  Center Health Panel. In particular, I am hopeful

         20  with the recent hiring of the World Trade Center

         21  Health Coordinator and the creation of a new website

         22  with information and resources relating to 9/11

         23  health issues, will help City workers and others

         24  find the information that they need.

         25                 This hearing is a third in a series
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          2  of hearings on access to medical care and benefits

          3  for uniformed City workers. At the previous

          4  hearings, the Civil Service and Labor Committee

          5  chaired by Council Member Addabbo, heard about

          6  numerous problems faced by City workers in getting

          7  treatments and benefits.

          8                 We hope to hear that significant

          9  progress has been made toward providing coordinated

         10  information and services to the City employees.

         11                 Again, it is an honor for me to

         12  co-chair this hearing to discuss the issues

         13  affecting the workers after that tragic day and to

         14  see how the City could move forward to make sure the

         15  City can receive the best treatment.

         16                 I know we have also been joined by

         17  Council Member Kendall Stewart, and Council Member

         18  rosie Mendez as well.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         20  much. We would also like to thank the staff who has

         21  put this hearing together, Counsel for the Civil

         22  Service and Labor Committee, Elisa Chae; Jack

         23  Herring, our Financial Analyst. And for the Health

         24  Committee, Adria Siman, the Counsel; and Rocco

         25  D'Angelo, Financial Analyst. So, again, we thank
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          2  them. We thank the Sergeant-At-Arms for setting up

          3  the room and keeping order in this room.

          4                 And our first panel, and we thank

          5  them for being here, is Linda Gibbs, the Deputy

          6  Mayor of Health and Human Services, and the World

          7  Trade Center Panel Co-chair, and Jeffrey Hon, and I

          8  can see you have somebody else. So, if you could

          9  make the introduction, please. But I thank the panel

         10  for being here today and for their time and

         11  testimony.

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Thank you,

         13  Chairman Addabbo, Chairman Rivera. With me is Rheema

         14  Cohen, who is the Director of Health and Community

         15  Services on my staff, and was the Co-Executive

         16  Director of the World Trade Center Health Panel.

         17  And, so, Rheema is here to answer any questions

         18  about that work that I won't be able to handle. And,

         19  of course, Jeffrey Hon, who has been appointed by

         20  the Health Commissioner and the Mayor as the World

         21  Trade Center Coordinator, and I'll touch a little

         22  bit on Jeffrey's work today.

         23                 So, thank you. Thank you to the

         24  members of the Committee on Civil Service and Labor

         25  and Health for inviting me to testify at this
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          2  hearing, for your ongoing commitment to addressing

          3  the 9/11 health issues. I have submitted testimony

          4  and I'm going to read highlights from that testimony

          5  and be available to answer your questions.

          6                 As you know, Deputy Mayor Ed Skyler

          7  and I chaired a panel of City agencies that Mayor

          8  Bloomberg convened on the even of the fifth

          9  anniversary of the World Trade Center attacks to

         10  explore what we know about 9/11 health and to

         11  develop recommendations to ensure that affected

         12  individuals get first rate medical care.

         13                 In the seven months since the report

         14  was released of the panel, we've made substantial

         15  progress in implementing each of the 15

         16  recommendations. So, permit me to highlight first

         17  the issues that panel identified, and then highlight

         18  the implementation of the recommendation.

         19                 So, regarding the 9/11 health

         20  effects, there is no doubt that thousands of people

         21  experienced physical and mental health conditions

         22  that were caused or exacerbated by exposure to the

         23  attacks and their aftermath. The most common are

         24  respiratory illness, such as asthma and mental

         25  health conditions, such as post traumatic stress
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          2  disorder and depression.

          3                 The World Trade Center registry has

          4  been a rich source of knowledge and information

          5  about those health affects. One study from the

          6  registry recently showed us that 3.6 percent of

          7  25,000 previously asthma-free rescue and recovery

          8  workers in the registry reported developing asthma

          9  after working at the World Trade Center site. And

         10  that is a very significant finding because that is

         11  12 times higher than the national average you would

         12  expect to see with adult on-set asthma. And, so,

         13  those in the registry reporting 12 times what you

         14  would expect to see the rate of asthma.

         15                 The second study shows us that more

         16  than 12 percent of rescue and recovery workers, or

         17  about one in eight, develop PTSD after working at

         18  Ground Zero. Three times higher than one sees in the

         19  general population. These are two very significant

         20  findings.

         21                 Area residents, school children and

         22  commercial workers also report a variety of 9/11

         23  working conditions, some of which persists to this

         24  day. So, there are many things we know, but more

         25  significantly there are many things that we still
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          2  have to learn, and that is why we must build on the

          3  capacity to detect and respond to the conditions

          4  that may be revealed in the future.

          5                 And, so, fortunately, world class

          6  care is available to those who are suffering at 3

          7  World Trade Center Health Centers of Excellence, and

          8  those treatment centers provide a wealth of ongoing

          9  data to learn about those emerging conditions.

         10                 The first of the three centers is, of

         11  course, the New York City Fire Department Program.

         12  The second is a free monitoring and treatment

         13  program for all other first responders that is

         14  coordinated by Mount Sinai. The third is the World

         15  Trade Center Environmental Health Center at Bellevue

         16  Hospital, which serves all other responders, area

         17  residents, and office workers.

         18                 These programs have also informed

         19  development of clinical guidelines for diagnosing

         20  and treating 9/11-related health problems. The

         21  knowledge that came from them allowed the Department

         22  of Health to establish those guidelines after

         23  reviewing many of the conditions and drawing on

         24  medical knowledge to recommend appropriate medical

         25  care for those suffering with conditions.
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          2                 That's the good news, but the panel

          3  also found that these efforts and the important

          4  research they generate are in jeopardy because of a

          5  lack of sustained federal financial commitment, and

          6  that there are troublesome gaps in information about

          7  World Trade Center health effects and treatment.

          8                 Regarding City employees, the panel

          9  found that uniformed agencies, particularly the Fire

         10  Department and Police Department, who employed about

         11  85 percent of the rescue and recovery workers,

         12  undertook very vigorous efforts to identify

         13  participants in World Trade Center operations, and

         14  to share World Trade Center health-related

         15  information with those individuals.

         16                 Overall, however, the panel found

         17  that most agencies outside of those two could do a

         18  better job identifying and keeping up with its

         19  employees and retirees and providing them a similar

         20  detail and quality of information.

         21                 So, just to review some of the health

         22  services. The Fire Department's World Trade Center

         23  Program is open to all employees and retirees who

         24  responded to the attacks, but no other City agency

         25  has a comparable in-house treatment program.
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          2                 Other uniformed employees primarily

          3  had been using the line of duty injury LODI systems

          4  to get treatment for work-related medical

          5  conditions. Retirees, however, must get treatment

          6  through their private health insurance.

          7                 Active duty civilian personnel

          8  workers' compensation and disability benefits

          9  provide the provide the primary means for

         10  reimbursement. Post retirement benefits are handled

         11  through the pension system. The availability of

         12  mental health services also varies by agency.

         13                 City workers who participated in the

         14  World Trade Center operations are eligible for

         15  physical health and mental health care through Sinai

         16  and Bellevue Programs, but civilian employees in the

         17  past have had to use sick leave to do initial

         18  screening for Mount Sinai and evaluation, a barrier

         19  to the use of those services.

         20                 So, in reviewing how the City has

         21  approached the services to individuals after the

         22  attacks, what we really see is a patchwork of

         23  disparate approaches and the panel found a lack of

         24  coordination among City agencies in ensuring

         25  outreach and knowledge of anyone who may be affected
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          2  about the potential ill effects and how they can

          3  receive treatment and benefits.

          4                 On pension and disability

          5  determinations, there is a similar patchwork

          6  approach. And there are of particular interest. We

          7  have in the City five different pension systems.

          8  Each system is governed by a Board of Trustees

          9  typically comprised of ex-officio officers from the

         10  City and various unions. The uniformed services go

         11  through a two-tiered process to receive accidental

         12  disability pensions. First, they go through a

         13  medical exam, an independent medical board, and the

         14  medical board determines disability, but the Board

         15  of Trustees then acts on that and makes the final

         16  decision on causation, meaning whether disability is

         17  job related.

         18                 In most cases the member must

         19  demonstrate the injury was a result of an accident

         20  in City service, in order to receive an accident

         21  disability pension. However, under various

         22  presumption bills enacted by the State, if an

         23  employee passes a pre-employment physical exam, and

         24  is later diagnosed with a qualifying illness, it is

         25  presumed that the illness is job related.
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          2                 The World Trade Center presumption

          3  bill is one of five presumption bills enacted by the

          4  State. Others include the preexisting heart bill and

          5  lung and cancer bills, which apply to employees of

          6  various City agencies.

          7                 Specifically the World Trade Center

          8  presumption applies to any City employee who took a

          9  physical exam prior to joining City service, is

         10  diagnosed with certain qualifying conditions, and

         11  participated in World Trade Center operations for at

         12  least 40 hours.

         13                 Members must file a notice of

         14  participation with their respective pension funds as

         15  having worked at a qualifying location for the

         16  requisite time. The Medical Boards associated with

         17  each of the pension systems are independent of the

         18  uniformed agency's medical divisions, which screen

         19  and treat employees.

         20                 On that note, DOHMH, in collaboration

         21  with clinicians from the Fire Department, Mount

         22  Sinai and Bellevue, have developed and distributed

         23  clinical guidelines for adults exposed to the World

         24  Trade Center disaster to physicians throughout New

         25  York State, including members of the independent

                                                            19

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  medical boards in order to ensure they have the most

          3  up-to-date knowledge, and to the extent that we are

          4  through that mechanism able to inform them, improve

          5  the coordination and consistency regarding their

          6  medical determinations.

          7                 I think it's fair to say that in the

          8  review of the treatment, outreach medical treatment

          9  services available, disability and pension benefits,

         10  that the panel found that there was not a well

         11  coordinated response on behalf of the City and that

         12  factors into a large number of the recommendations

         13  that came out of the panel.

         14                 Key to that was around communications

         15  and outreach. The panel reviewed agency

         16  communications about these 9/11 health-related

         17  issues, and with the exception of the Fire

         18  Department, most of the agencies did not currently

         19  have a formal communication mechanism in place. The

         20  panel found that most agencies could do more to

         21  better inform City workers, and the City's World

         22  Trade Center health practices vary and could be

         23  better coordinated.

         24                 So, on those recommendations. The

         25  list of 15 recommendations are available in the
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          2  report of the panel to Mayor Bloomberg. You can find

          3  the report and the recommendation at the City's new

          4  World Trade Center Health website at www.nyc.gov,

          5  and let me highlight some of the recommendations and

          6  our status on those.

          7                 Our World Trade Center Health

          8  Coordinator and website. The panel called for the

          9  appointment of a Citywide World Trade Center Health

         10  Coordinator to oversee a one-stop website of World

         11  Trade Center health information to promote

         12  coordination of World Trade Center health policies

         13  and to ensure effective communication with affected

         14  populations.

         15                 So, this goes way beyond City

         16  employees and it was really meant to try to both

         17  improve the coordination and communication among

         18  City employees, but also with the affected community

         19  in Lower Manhattan and those that worked or had

         20  exposure to the attacks on the days of and after the

         21  attacks.

         22                 In June the Mayor announced the

         23  appointment of Jeffrey Hon, as the City's World

         24  Trade Center Health Coordinator, and I am please to

         25  say that Jeffrey has hit the ground running. Notably
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          2  oversaw development of the nation's first and only

          3  comprehensive World Trade Center Health website,

          4  which the Mayor has recently unveiled.

          5                 The website consolidates the latest

          6  information on research and services, offers advice

          7  about what people who are sick can do to get better,

          8  and provides links to more than 100 different World

          9  Trade Center Health and social service resources.

         10                 Spanish and Chinese translations of

         11  the site are underway and should be completed soon.

         12                 Jeffrey also responds to numerous

         13  inquiries from the public generated by both the

         14  website and 3-1-1, and he has met with labor,

         15  community, business groups, care providers,

         16  including all three Centers of Excellence and their

         17  Medical Directors, to identify common areas of

         18  interest so that we can work together effectively.

         19                 To address the communication and

         20  coordination issues, senior level liaisons have been

         21  appointed in 16 agencies with the highest number of

         22  World Trade Center rescue and recovery workers.

         23  These appointments occurred in early August.

         24                 These liaisons are the go-to people

         25  for employees who have questions about what the City
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          2  is doing to address the health impacts of 9/11, and

          3  to continue to publicize, for example, a new policy

          4  that the panel recommends and that the Mayor has

          5  implemented, and allows City employees who are not

          6  currently participating in either the Sinai or

          7  Bellevue Programs to have an initial screening and

          8  evaluation at one of these centers on City time,

          9  rather than using their limited sick time, for up to

         10  four hours.

         11                 We're going to drop the barriers that

         12  might impede a person's opportunity chances to find

         13  out whether or not they are in fact suffering. So,

         14  by offering four hours of City time, we hope more

         15  people who may be suffering the conditions will

         16  attend and have that screening.

         17                 The panel also called for the

         18  establishment of a medical work group of clinicians

         19  and researchers from within and outside City

         20  government to review the scientific data on the

         21  World Trade Center health and to communicate the

         22  results throughout the City. The Mayor has appointed

         23  the members of the group and I am chairing that

         24  group with Commissioner Tom Frieden. That group has

         25  met twice.
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          2                 The panel also recommended that the

          3  World Trade Center Environmental Health Center at

          4  Bellevue and actively promoted. We've invested over

          5  $15 million in the past five years to implement this

          6  recommendation, and just last week the Mayor joined

          7  HHC President Al Aviles in announcing the extension

          8  of the center to two additional locations.

          9                 This is meant not only to expand the

         10  capacity, but also to make more proximate the

         11  capacity to affected populations. The key to the

         12  Mayor's recommendations was also that the City needs

         13  to vigorously pursue federal funding to support the

         14  programs that form the cornerstone of our response

         15  to 9/11 health concerns. The Mayor has worked

         16  tirelessly on this effort in partnership with the

         17  New York City Congressional Delegation. And I also

         18  want to recognize our gratitude to the Council for

         19  adding even more vigorously in this effort in the

         20  trip that the Speaker made with many members last

         21  week to Washington to help to reiterate that

         22  important message.

         23                 Deputy Mayor Skyler and I have

         24  testified several times before the US Congress.

         25  We've met with officials from the Bush
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          2  Administration to press our case, and most recently

          3  we announced our support for the James Zadroga 9/11

          4  Health and Compensation Act co-sponsored by every

          5  member of the New York House Delegation, which would

          6  provide federal funding to care for those who are

          7  sick.

          8                 The bill would also open the Victims'

          9  Compensation Fund which would enable the City to get

         10  out of the Courtroom and focus on helping those who

         11  would continue to struggle with the 9/11 aftermath.

         12                 The Council has been a great partner

         13  in this effort, and we need to continue to work

         14  together and are very encouraged as the Speaker of

         15  the House Nancy Pelosi's support expressed last week

         16  when she met here with the Mayor and the Speaker in

         17  New York City.

         18                 So, it remains an ongoing challenge.

         19  The lack of the consistent federal funding mean that

         20  our Fire Department, our Mount Sinai programs have

         21  to continue to operate with a patchwork of funding

         22  from emergency appropriations and philanthropic

         23  dollars, while the World Trade Center program at

         24  Bellevue has never received federal funding and

         25  depends on City resources that we've been able to
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          2  offer to ensure people get the services they need.

          3                 As the Mayor said when he accepted

          4  our report, individuals now experiencing 9/11 health

          5  effects were responding to an act of war against the

          6  nation and New York City should not bear this

          7  responsibility on its own.

          8                 We are asking for the federal

          9  government to step up to the plate and to support

         10  these brave men and women. So, while we wait for

         11  Congress to act, the City is not waiting to make

         12  sure people get the health care they need.

         13                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         14  to testify. I look forward to working with you more

         15  on this issue, and I'm more than happy to take your

         16  questions, as are my colleagues.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         18  much. I just have a couple of questions and then

         19  I'll turn it over to my co-chair.

         20                 As of May of 2007, less than 14,000

         21  responders that had registered with the State's

         22  Workers Compensation Board, but it's estimated that

         23  about 100,000 are eligible, do we have an idea or a

         24  rough estimate how many more have enrolled since

         25  that day? And what can we do to get more of the
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          2  eligible enrollees to enroll?

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: I can get you

          4  that data. I don't have it off the top of my head,

          5  but this is very much the role of the World Trade

          6  Center Coordinator Jeffrey, and the liaisons that

          7  we've appointed in the City agencies.

          8                 When we sat down and went through

          9  agency-by-agency what each one knew about how many

         10  of their employees had engaged in part of the rescue

         11  and recovery effort, and whether or not they had an

         12  ongoing mechanism within their agency for

         13  communicating with those individuals about the most

         14  up-to-date information about the conditions and the

         15  benefits, what we found was a great disparity in how

         16  the agencies were handling it. Some were just

         17  spectacular. Everything we needed right away. They

         18  were really the model. Others, quite frankly, were

         19  very much lacking, did not have a routine way of

         20  doing that, were passing on information to the

         21  entirety of their workforce in some case, sometimes

         22  only posting it in certain places, and what the

         23  panel recommended was that we really need to have a

         24  thorough and consistent approach across all

         25  agencies.
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          2                 So, that has been very much at the

          3  core of the work as it relates to City employees.

          4  Consistent communication, thorough communication,

          5  and outreach, and so that is ongoing with the

          6  liaisons and with the coordinator.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, so have

          8  they fully revamped yet, their protocols for finding

          9  out which employees had participated? Or is it still

         10  an ongoing process?

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: It is very much

         12  an ongoing process, and I imagine it is going to

         13  continue to be an ongoing process as more and more

         14  information emerges.

         15                 We've made a great deal of effort of

         16  not only extending deadlines where they apply for

         17  certain benefits, but also vigorously advertising

         18  those well. And I do believe that this is one of the

         19  things, I think important findings that we're

         20  having, is that some of the conditions are late in

         21  emerging. People who responded but, gee, it's been

         22  five years and I'm feeling okay, don't feel the same

         23  urgency to preserve some of their rights as those

         24  who are already suffering.

         25                 And, so, what we need to do is to
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          2  continue to repeat and reiterate into the community

          3  of both the City employees, as well as the broader

          4  community, that some of these conditions are late

          5  emerging, and how those people can go and get those

          6  screenings and how they can get access to the

          7  treatment that is unconditioned for those that are

          8  in the impacted area, and what benefits are

          9  available to them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay. At the last

         11  Council hearing we heard that there continues to be

         12  a long wait for an appointment at the World Trade

         13  Center's screening and treatment programs; is this

         14  still the case at all the programs? Or if not, which

         15  ones?

         16                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Well, one of the

         17  areas that concerned us the greatest was the program

         18  for those that were not immediately eligible for the

         19  Mount Sinai program and the Fire Department program.

         20  And, so, while we've continued to work with those

         21  programs to ensure that they have resources, our

         22  concern was very much for individuals who did not

         23  have access.

         24                 The Bellevue Program that began to

         25  serve office residents, office workers and area
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          2  residents and other community members, was limited

          3  in its capacity and at the point of the panel's

          4  report about seven months ago, there was a waiting

          5  list of several hundred individuals, I think it

          6  might have been up to 700. It was really a fairly

          7  considerable waiting list.

          8                 I'm pleased to say now that there is

          9  no waiting list, that everyone who has reached out

         10  for service, if they haven't already received an

         11  appointment for a screening and treatment, is

         12  scheduled to receive an appointment.

         13                 Now, on the waiting times for

         14  scheduling of a visit, it can sometimes be two to

         15  three weeks before a person will get into an

         16  appointment to see the doctor, but nobody who is

         17  calling is being put on a wait list and being told,

         18  as we had in the past, I'm sorry, but we don't have

         19  the capacity to serve you, we'll call you back at

         20  some future date. Everyone who calls is scheduled

         21  for an appointment.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay. We've also

         23  been joined by Council Member Nelson, Council Member

         24  Melissa Mark-Viverito right there, Council Member

         25  John Liu, Council Member Maria Baez and Council
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          2  Member Inez Dickens is there, as well.

          3                 I have no more questions. I know my

          4  Co-chair has questions.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          8  much. And, again, I want to thank this panel for

          9  being here today on this most important issue, and

         10  for the work that you've done and obviously the work

         11  that needs to continue to be done.

         12                 Deputy Mayor, you mentioned

         13  communication is very important, and I think it's so

         14  important, not only amongst the panel, but also,

         15  obviously to the workers. Are there any efforts

         16  being made to increase the amount of information

         17  that gets down to the City agencies and its workers

         18  for those who might have ill affects from 9/11.

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: I'm going to ask

         20  Jeffrey Hon, the World Trade Center Coordinator, to

         21  describe to you some of the efforts underway.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         23                 MR. HON: I had the first meeting with

         24  the World Trade Center Agency Liaisons just after

         25  Labor Day, and we introduced a plan there, a 9/11
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          2  Health Communication Service, which we'll be

          3  implementing through the agency, and essentially

          4  what they'll be doing is asking individuals who

          5  participated in the rescue and recovery operations

          6  to sign up for what we call "push communications."

          7  Those push communications would be topical

          8  information about health concerns that they may

          9  have. So, for example, we could send out a push

         10  communication about the Workers Comp issue through

         11  the agencies.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sure other

         13  issues as well pertain to this.

         14                 MR. HON: Any issue that pertains. The

         15  point of building the list is so that we can have

         16  regular and frequent contact with people who

         17  participated in the rescue and recovery operation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And this plan,

         19  Mr. Hon, is being implemented right now as we speak,

         20  or should be implemented?

         21                 MR. HON: The plan was announced, and

         22  we're working towards implementing it. We hope to

         23  have it, the first communication go out before the

         24  end of the year.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And Deputy
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          2  Mayor, you mentioned a report previously to the

          3  Mayor, the Health Panel report, exactly, that report

          4  is an annual report?

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: This is the

          6  initial report of a survey that took us some six

          7  months to complete. It's quite exhaustive. This is a

          8  summary of what is really, was a massive amount of

          9  information, collection and digestion that led to 15

         10  recommendations. In the report we commit to updating

         11  the findings and the actions that are taken

         12  annually.

         13                 The panel itself will reconvene and

         14  look at progress and report on that annually.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's

         16  important, obviously, to update the progress in

         17  other words being made. Again, so that report will

         18  be an annual report to look at, again, these updates

         19  of progress?

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: A reconvening of

         21  the group annually to ensure that everything is

         22  moving forward. And I do want to say that we're not

         23  waiting until an annual meeting to do that.

         24                 Rheema Cohen, the Director in my

         25  office, together with her co-director Kas Holloway
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          2  and Deputy Mayor Skyler's office are routinely

          3  working with various agencies and organizations

          4  involved in implementing the recommendation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The interaction

          6  with agencies, as you mentioned, are you happy with

          7  the current interaction with agencies and their

          8  cooperation with you? Do you think there needs to be

          9  an improved communication with City agencies and

         10  their workers?

         11                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Yes. I would say

         12  yes and yes. I believe that when we found that great

         13  disparity and purpose, we found a number of agencies

         14  that were really eager for more guidance, for more

         15  support. I've worked in agencies that have fairly

         16  limited medical expertise, and it's not in the

         17  mission of the agency to do medical work. And, so,

         18  as a result there was no logical place within the

         19  agency where ownership was just taken on or where

         20  there was an expertise in order to adequately

         21  respond. And, so, what we have done is really I

         22  think tapped into what has been a little bit of a

         23  desire for those agencies to have better information

         24  and it's with an eagerness that they're coming to

         25  the table.
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          2                 Yes, we need to do all of this in

          3  order to continue to improve communications.

          4                 Rheema, do you want to add to that?

          5                 MS. COHEN: That sounds right. And I

          6  just wanted to mention, it's in the testimony, that

          7  if you want to get up-to-the-minute updates on

          8  progress with the 15 recommendations, it is on the

          9  website right now, and we'll continue to update that

         10  so you can see every recommendation and the progress

         11  that we're making on it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ms. Cohen, you

         13  probably read my notes, that was my next question,

         14  the website, which I think is another way of

         15  improving communication to those affected.

         16                 The website itself, how recently is

         17  it updated, or will be updated in the future?

         18                 MR. HON: It's being updated daily at

         19  the moment. What we've also done is tried to solicit

         20  feedback from our partners. We want to make sure

         21  that it's as comprehensive, user-friendly and

         22  responsive to our partners as we can make it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And, again, it's

         24  a somewhat interactive website where, again, me

         25  being a worker, there is contact information,
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          2  correct?

          3                 MR. HON: Correct. All of the agency

          4  liaisons are listed and there's also, there are

          5  special sections for City employees, for rescue and

          6  recovery workers, for residents, children and others

          7  affected.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's great.

          9                 The last line of questioning, to an

         10  extent, is about funding, which I think is critical.

         11  Obviously without funding we cannot go forward, both

         12  City funding and hopefully federal funding as well.

         13                 How much does it cost annually to

         14  treat the workers we currently have, and it's not

         15  obviously to take into account the workers we'll

         16  have in the future, but currently? Do you have an

         17  idea of how much it would cost for monitoring and

         18  treatment?

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: When we looked at

         20  the health impacts, we also tempted to draw some

         21  conclusions about the costs of the health effects of

         22  treating, identifying and treating the health

         23  effects of both nationally and those costs that

         24  we've incurred here in New York City.

         25                 The panel's recommendation, the
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          2  panel's estimates on that, I believe, draw fairly

          3  conservatively some of those estimates, and our

          4  conclusion was that we believe that there are $393

          5  million of expenditures annually associated with the

          6  health effects of 9/11. And that covers everybody.

          7  That is a national estimate. That covers everybody

          8  who was present and who was involved in the rescue

          9  and recovery, whether they were from a house in

         10  Brooklyn or whether they are from a responding

         11  company from Texas, just a total estimate. And it

         12  also estimates the, while it's a lower level of

         13  incidents, the higher incidents compared to the

         14  general population of those that work in the

         15  surrounding area and that live in Lower Manhattan.

         16                 So we took fairly conservative

         17  estimates around the health impacts for those

         18  populations, and projected amount, and estimated

         19  about $400 million annually expended in order to

         20  treat those health effects.

         21                 We then looked at how much of that

         22  cost is the City and the individuals that we are

         23  responsible for actually bearing, and that estimate

         24  is $150 million annually.

         25                 That would cover again a fairly, and
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          2  I'm saying fairly conservative estimates, because it

          3  draws on the existing literature and documentation

          4  around the current levels of impact and reasonable

          5  cost associated with treating those conditions and

          6  projecting them to the population.

          7                 This differs, for instance, from the

          8  estimates made by Dr. John Howard, where he looked

          9  at just the rescue and recovery workers and then

         10  made some conclusions in his judgment about what the

         11  likely trajectory is, in terms of the incidents of

         12  the ill-effects. And, so, his is more a projection

         13  that's based on the assumption that there would be a

         14  growth in the incidents.

         15                 But he, on the other hand, did not

         16  look at the costs associated with the office workers

         17  and area residents. He limited his estimates to the

         18  rescue and recovery workers. With that, but the

         19  slightly more expansive estimates, he concluded that

         20  $400 million would be spent just on the rescue and

         21  recovery workers.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And as you said,

         23  that's a conservative number, considering that this

         24  issue is growing each and every year. So, this cost

         25  is going to rise, correct?
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: I think that what

          3  we're seeing is two things, and now you'll have to

          4  forgive me, I'm not a medical doctor, and so I've

          5  retained sort of a couple I think key and

          6  straightforward facts. One is that for many

          7  individuals, and particularly if you responded

          8  quickly, if you were there soon after the attacks

          9  and were in the immediate minutes and hours and days

         10  present and exposed, that your likelihood of

         11  suffering the ill conditions is higher, and for many

         12  of those individuals conditions, I mean it's not

         13  something for everyone has stayed with them. Some

         14  have suffered from that but then recovered. For

         15  others in smaller numbers there's some late

         16  appearance of the illnesses, and there is much that

         17  we don't know. And, so, while we've seen many that

         18  suffered conditions and have recovered, we've also

         19  seen some for whom the conditions are consistent.

         20                 And so I think we are continuing to

         21  carefully collect the survey data in the World Trade

         22  Center Registry. We're continuing to invest in

         23  research and evaluation. We're continuing to convene

         24  the medical experts, because we want to be as on top

         25  of these trends as possible, to ensure that our
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          2  local capacity is present, in order to meet the

          3  needs.

          4                 And, Jeffrey, on the health effects,

          5  if there is more you would add on that?

          6                 MR. HON: No, I think you really

          7  summed it up very well.

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And as this

         10  funding allows us to go forward, the funding

         11  obviously has a direct effect on the three Centers

         12  of Excellence. Your interaction, the Health Panel

         13  and the Coordinator's interaction with these Centers

         14  of Excellence, if you may, in brief?

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Sure. And this is

         16  really the lack of a consistent dependable funding,

         17  it's just so critical. The most contact with our

         18  Bellevue Center at the Health and Hospitals

         19  Corporation, because as a City organization that is

         20  one that I am involved in their day-to-day

         21  management, and it is a real impediment to

         22  consistent programming and service to wonder whether

         23  or not your funding is going to run out in

         24  September, is going to run out next June, whether

         25  you're going to have the continued support in order
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          2  to make commitments to nurses, to doctors, to

          3  clinical experts, in order to commit to them to come

          4  onto a program and work and do this work when

          5  funding is uncertain.

          6                 We overcame that obstacle for the

          7  Bellevue Center because the Mayor said I need to

          8  have a dependable service available, and he provided

          9  City funding to avoid that kind of stop-gap disaster

         10  management within the treatment center itself.

         11                 The Fire Department and the Mount

         12  Sinai Program have been dependent on, you know,

         13  those quick fix funding, those emergency

         14  appropriations, the summer, for instance, as we

         15  talked about, well, how long do you think the money

         16  is going to last us? Is it going to get us through

         17  October? Is it going to get us through January? When

         18  is it going to run out? We have to go back for more

         19  emergency appropriations. It's just no way to run a

         20  program of this level of importance and

         21  significance, and it undermines our ability to

         22  reliably ensure that everyone gets serviced. We have

         23  to have a consistent federal funding to support

         24  these initiatives.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And talking
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          2  about the time line of funding, you know, are we

          3  looking toward the end of the year when the funding

          4  is going to run out? I mean, how long does the

          5  current funding stream last?

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Rheema is on this

          7  daily with congressional staff.

          8                 MS. COHEN: Yes. It varies by program

          9  and, of course, nobody knows exactly, it really

         10  depends on how many patients, and I think as you've

         11  heard, Mount Sinai, because of some of the publicity

         12  about the program has actually seen increase --

         13  continues to see more and more people, but both the

         14  Fire Department Program and Mount Sinai believe that

         15  they'll run out of money for treatment some time

         16  next year, and for monitoring which is in a separate

         17  pool and has been funded separately by the Congress

         18  and the federal government probably in FY '09. But

         19  that could change if we see a spike up in treatment

         20  cost or if we see people who need hospitalizations,

         21  which so far we haven't seen that much, but that

         22  will really blow all the estimates and the money

         23  could run out more quickly if we start to see that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That is a very

         25  troublesome statement. If they run out of money,
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          2  obviously it's going to be an issue. So, we will

          3  continue to monitor that and work on that.

          4                 Questions from Council Member

          5  Stewart.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair.

          8                 I have one simple question that I

          9  wanted to ask Ms. Gibbs.

         10                 You spoke about long-term effect,

         11  illnesses, et cetera. But what I would like to know,

         12  and no one seems to be speaking about that, is the

         13  indoor inspection and clean-up, inspection in terms

         14  of the worksite around Lower Manhattan, and also the

         15  homes those in Lower Manhattan, I haven't heard

         16  anybody talking about testing to see if the dust and

         17  all those things that are still remaining inside?

         18  Because for long-term effect, that will continue to

         19  create a problem. And if no one is trying to get to

         20  the root of the problem which is the dust and all of

         21  those things in the work site, in the homes, where

         22  it has lodged itself, it means that we will continue

         23  to try to treat, and try to ameliorate some of these

         24  problems for years and years and years and still

         25  don't know how to really resolve it.
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          2                 So, do you have anything to say about

          3  indoor clean-up? Indoor --

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Yes. And I

          5  apologize, it was an omission not to include some

          6  comment about that.

          7                 It was not something that the panel's

          8  recommendation's included because this work has been

          9  done by the federal government through I believe the

         10  EPA, and it's not something that the City was

         11  directly participating or responsible in. And so I,

         12  myself, am not expert on that.

         13                 It is something I believe, and I'll

         14  ask Jeffrey if he has some thoughts about that, if

         15  now, it's clearly something where we want to

         16  communicate the best information about that. Because

         17  on the one hand, I think we have some knowledge and

         18  we should be sharing that, and people should not be

         19  in fear of something larger than what is. On the

         20  other hand, to the extent that there is knowledge

         21  that can help them to feel better educated, they

         22  perhaps feel more secure in the current condition,

         23  and whether or not it's our responsibility as a City

         24  to actually do that clean up work, is really not the

         25  question in my mind, but it's really more about how
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          2  we can use our communication vehicles to help people

          3  to understand that.

          4                 So, Jeffrey, if you have anything to

          5  add on that? Or is that something to put on your to

          6  do list?

          7                 MR. HON: It's something to put on my

          8  to do list. Although, I do believe there is still,

          9  there are four locations in Lower Manhattan where

         10  air quality is being monitored as a result to make

         11  sure there are no dust being released into the air

         12  with the demolition of certain buildings. And that

         13  information is available on the website.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I understand

         15  that, but I haven't heard anybody talking about

         16  going into the worksite, going in there testing the

         17  dust. We go into homes now and test for lead paint

         18  and lead dust, but we are not going into areas that

         19  we had this big problem. And we're talking about

         20  long-term health effects. So, I would like to know

         21  if you know if any of that, and this is something

         22  that should be raised?

         23                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Perhaps, and,

         24  again, I don't come with an expertise around what

         25  has been done. EPA did conduct a first round, I
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          2  know. There was some dissatisfaction with that, and

          3  some reviewing of that, and the EPA this summer

          4  announced a second round of indoor testing

          5  undertaking to those in the impacted area who can

          6  request it, and that work is ongoing.

          7                 Maybe Rheema can add another comment

          8  about it, but I want to come back to the omission

          9  from our comment is because this has been, the

         10  federal government accepts that this is their

         11  responsibility and the EPA is the agency that has

         12  been taking this on on behalf of the federal

         13  government.

         14                 MS. COHEN: Yes. Just to build on

         15  Deputy Mayor Gibb's remarks. As you know, the EPA

         16  initially had a program, a test and clean program

         17  that was funded in Lower Manhattan and it was about

         18  a $30 million program. There was some analysis about

         19  that program, some dissatisfaction. And the EPA

         20  convened a panel of experts, medical and scientific

         21  researchers, and the City participated in that

         22  panel, and they did provide recommendations to the

         23  EPA on how to revise the program for the second

         24  round. The EPA did decide to disband the panel and

         25  only accepted some of the recommendations, but they
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          2  did implement this second round of programs, it's

          3  just getting underway right now. It's a voluntary

          4  test and clean program and we'll be watching that

          5  and communicating the results of that on the

          6  website.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: My last

          8  question, Mr. Chair.

          9                 We know that with the fall of the

         10  Trade Center certain types of material really are

         11  causing this problem, causing lung problems, causing

         12  asthma, causing all of these different type of

         13  medical problems. I'm wondering if we are building

         14  in general the same way as we build the World Trade

         15  Center with the same type of material that now is

         16  causing so much problems, are we using the same type

         17  of material, and those are questions that I think

         18  should be asked. And I'm not too sure that you're

         19  really looking at issues like that, because if

         20  another building were to be flattened or demolished,

         21  whether the same type of material will be dislodged

         22  and causing problems to the general population; are

         23  we doing the same thing? Or was the World Trade

         24  Center built with the different type of material?

         25  Those things I'm not hearing about and those are
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          2  some of the questions we would like to get answers

          3  to.

          4                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: That's certainly

          5  a very big question. And I have virtually no

          6  knowledge or background in terms of building

          7  construction. What I do know, just as a member of

          8  the community, is that our knowledge about the

          9  asbestoses is relatively new compared to the time of

         10  building construction when it was highly dependent

         11  upon. The same thing for lead paint. And I think

         12  gratefully we learn and we amend our laws and

         13  correct that and try to advance our practices.

         14                 At the same time, what I would say,

         15  which was a very important learning that I think did

         16  come out of the panel's reflection is that we need

         17  to constantly look to how to reinforce our

         18  coordination and standards when we see any kind of

         19  building demolition, and particularly when we see an

         20  emergency, I don't know, demolition is not the word,

         21  when you have an explosion and a building collapses.

         22  And the panel recommended that the City needed to

         23  heighten its standards in our emergency response

         24  around containing the health effects from an

         25  explosion, and I'm glad to say that those
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          2  recommendations were already partially in place at

          3  the time of the explosion in Midtown this past

          4  summer, and we're already helpful in informing how

          5  we respond and contain to the environmental

          6  conditions resulting from a building explosion. But

          7  that work does need to continue, and it is one of

          8  the panel's recommendations and will, for the very

          9  reasons you say, that when these contaminants are

         10  released into the environment, there are steps that

         11  you can take to protect the public and contain the

         12  impacts.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         16  Council Member Stewart.

         17                 The last line of questioning to this

         18  panel, you have mentioned in your testimony about

         19  the four hours paid leave to go get monitored,

         20  correct?

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: It's for

         22  screening and evaluation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Screening and

         24  evaluation.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: So, screening and
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          2  evaluation, that's where you go in and you're

          3  checked. You know, you have a medical check-up and

          4  conditions are reviewed, and you are assisted in

          5  determining whether or not you are suffering an ill

          6  effect.

          7                 Monitoring is different, where you

          8  are enrolled in a program and you agree I'm going to

          9  come back every year, you know, for you to be able

         10  to monitor my ongoing conditions, regardless of

         11  whether or not you're suffering a condition. But

         12  what we saw was that we had many City employees that

         13  were part of rescue and recovery who were not

         14  availing themselves of the City programs, and we

         15  heard back from the unions that the fact that they

         16  had to use their limited sick time in order to go

         17  for those screenings was an impediment, and we

         18  didn't want to see that continue, and so the Mayor

         19  has announced, and this has already been implemented

         20  in City agencies that individuals can use four hours

         21  of City time, as if they were at their desk, go up,

         22  get your check-up, find out how you're doing and we

         23  really want to encourage people to find out if, you

         24  know, that cough that they're having is related

         25  possibly to their exposure during their rescue and
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          2  recovery operation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I appreciate

          4  that. That is an issue that we have discussed at

          5  these kind of hearings previously.

          6                 Two quick questions. Number one, it

          7  does not include treatment, unfortunately, I

          8  understand, and also secondly, how did the panel

          9  derive at four hours?

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: The question of

         11  treatment, of course, then we have all the Centers

         12  of Excellence to provide treatment, and so between

         13  the Fire Department, the Mount Sinai Program and

         14  Bellevue, nobody who is suffering a condition

         15  related to their exposure of the World Trade Center

         16  explosion should go without services. Every single

         17  person can receive treatment services at one of

         18  those three facilities. And that is exactly the cost

         19  that we're incurring that we need the federal

         20  government to come to guarantee so that we don't

         21  have to put at risk anybody in the future, that they

         22  won't be able to receive service. That's exactly

         23  what we're doing that for.

         24                 The four hours is travel time and

         25  time to undertake the screening and travel back.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Workers were

          3  surveyed at some point? Like that was a cumulative

          4  average? Any idea?

          5                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: It's more the

          6  estimate of how long it takes for somebody to get in

          7  and out of the clinic, and then an assumption about

          8  a little bit of travel time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'd hate to have

         10  this vision and somebody spins a wheel and it wound

         11  up on four and that's the hour they chose. I'm

         12  hoping there is some evaluation.

         13                 To your point, Deputy Mayor, again,

         14  to encourage people to take, you know, to go get the

         15  monitoring treatment that they deserve, we look for

         16  ways to again encourage workers to do that. If in

         17  the future this panel can either (a) look at

         18  increasing the amount of four hours, this Committee

         19  and I'm sure the Health Committee would appreciate

         20  that, if that needs to be done. But also possibly in

         21  the future, looking to have those four hours go

         22  into, as well as the treatment aspect, that the

         23  workers are given time paid to go get treatment as

         24  well.

         25                 That's just a recommendation of this
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          2  Committee.

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Yes, and we'll

          4  definitely take that back. And what I am initially

          5  speculating is that the sick time is obviously

          6  usable for treatment services.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And as far as

          8  you said, the implementation of this paid four hours

          9  gets out there and it's being implemented right now;

         10  how does the word get out to the workers? Is that

         11  off the website? Is that a notice to the agencies?

         12  That's important information. How does that

         13  important information get out there? And if there

         14  was a change in the four hours, it's for treatment

         15  now, or it's up to six hours? How would that

         16  information in the future get out to the workers?

         17                 MR. HON: Through the 9/11 Health

         18  Communication Service that I described earlier.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mm-hmm.

         20                 MR. HON: Via the agencies. So, it

         21  would also be on the website as well.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you. Well,

         23  hopefully that kind of important information does

         24  get out there.

         25                 In wrapping up for this panel, where
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          2  do we go from here? And how can the City Council

          3  help? What is the most important pressing issue that

          4  you're going to address?

          5                 I'm sorry, we're going to Council

          6  Member Nelson for a question. We've also been joined

          7  by Council Member Foster.

          8                 Council Member Nelson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair. I didn't mean to cut you off. I apologize.

         11                 We want to thank you for all the work

         12  that you're doing. I'm sure all of us agree that we

         13  need more money, because there's a lot more work to

         14  be done, and we are fighting to get more federal

         15  money as well.

         16                 I was curious about something,

         17  though, Deputy Mayor. I visited a facility run by

         18  Scientologists, which I am not one, although there's

         19  nothing wrong with it, but I'm not, and I've never

         20  even shook Tom Cruise's hand, but I was impressed by

         21  the work at that facility. And unless I've been

         22  completely duped, and some others of the Council

         23  members went, and I don't know who else went, we

         24  spoke to about seven or eight patients when we were

         25  there and they were really totally, you know, pro
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          2  this center. We saw a lot of the good work that was

          3  being done.

          4                 I know it was dismissed by somebody

          5  high in government as being some form of hocus

          6  pocus, which I do not know, I do not know if it is.

          7  I do not, whether it is or it isn't, but I don't

          8  know, I was wondering if you or anybody on your

          9  panel has visited them or any medical professionals,

         10  without it being just dismissed without an

         11  investigation or looking into any health care

         12  professionals, or is it just considered radioactive,

         13  so-to-speak, and not even something to look into?

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: The issue has not

         15  come up during our panel discussion, and I, myself,

         16  am not personally familiar with it. So, I can't

         17  offer a comment on it. I didn't go to visit. I'm not

         18  familiar with the program.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay. Not that

         20  you did anything wrong by not going, believe me. I'm

         21  not suggesting that at all. But it may be something

         22  that, because I was very impressed, it was like

         23  fiberglass that were coming out of these people's

         24  pores. There were more than seven or eight people

         25  there, I just didn't have the opportunity to speak
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          2  to all of them. But one of them was telling me the

          3  fiberglass was actually coming out with their sweat

          4  process, the vitamins, whatever was being done

          5  there. It might be an outlet, if it's allowed to be

          6  looked at, I don't know if permission would be given

          7  even, but I'm just throwing it out there. I have no

          8  horse in this race really other than it might be

          9  helpful to help some of the people that have been

         10  exposed to the elements. Just for whatever it's

         11  worth, I don't know if you want to put that on the

         12  board, too. But if you could, I think it might be a

         13  useful tool, possibly, the determination hopefully

         14  could be made one way or the other.

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         19  Council Member Nelson.

         20                 So, to my final point, where do we go

         21  from here? What is the most pressing issue for the

         22  health panel, for the coordinator, and how can we as

         23  Council members help?

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: I do think, and

         25  this is almost how I consider my own responsibility
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          2  on this issue, which is that the panel worked really

          3  hard. We had hundreds of interviews. We tried to

          4  talk to organizations, the City agencies, the

          5  medical researchers, to try to get the best

          6  information to develop the soundest recommendations.

          7  And, so, now it is incumbent on all of us to make

          8  sure that we move forward and implement these

          9  recommendations. And, so, working with us to advance

         10  the panel's recommendations and make those happen is

         11  a welcome partnerships.

         12                 I think more importantly where we are

         13  in the point of time is none of this is certain.

         14  This could all fall apart around the lack of a

         15  federal support for this work. These individuals are

         16  suffering after they voluntarily step forward and

         17  responded to an attack. We need to make sure that

         18  when that happens in the future that nobody

         19  hesitates because the federal government won't back

         20  them up, and we need to make sure that we get

         21  federal support to make available monitoring and

         22  treatment for every individual who may be suffering.

         23  Your leadership and partnership on that issue I

         24  think is by far our most pressing concern at this

         25  point.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          3  much, Deputy Mayor. I appreciate that. Again, I

          4  appreciate this panel's efforts. We look forward to

          5  their work in cooperation, because, again, without

          6  it, and without funding, especially from the federal

          7  level, these good programs and others will just go

          8  by the wayside as the problems probably increases in

          9  the years to come. So, again, we appreciate the

         10  working relationship and look forward to it in the

         11  future, as well.

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 I didn't see anybody sign in, but I'm

         16  just going to ask if anybody is here to speak on

         17  behalf of the Department of Sanitation? Okay, great.

         18  The Fire Department?

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM THE

         20  AUDIENCE: She had to leave.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: She had to

         22  leave, okay.

         23                 The Police Department? Great. If we

         24  can just get to the witness stand, please.

         25                 Special counsel to the Mayor's
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          2  Office.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes, if we can

          4  ask the panelists to please come, the Fire

          5  Department rep, the Police Department

          6  representative.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: If not to

          8  testify, to answer questions, please. If you want to

          9  answer questions if we have questions for the Fire

         10  Department and Police Department. Is anybody here to

         11  answer questions?

         12                 Okay, in the effort of keeping those

         13  lines of communications open, subsequent to this

         14  hearing if we do have any questions, we'll let the

         15  agencies know; is that okay? All right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And pursuant to

         19  Deputy Mayor Gibb's statements regarding federal

         20  funding, we're going to call up three

         21  representatives. One from Congressman Nadler's

         22  Office, that's Erin Drinkwater; Councilman Vito

         23  Fossella's Office, that's Bob Capano; and

         24  Congresswoman Carolyn Malone, that's Tina

         25  Olechowski.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Okay, you may

          3  begin. It's up to you to determine who goes first.

          4                 MR. CAPANO: My name is Bob Capano. I

          5  represent Congressman Vito Fossella, who represents

          6  Southwest Brooklyn, and Staten Island, and I'm

          7  reading his testimony on his behalf.

          8                 With the sixth anniversary of 9/11

          9  having just passed, it is time to reaffirm our

         10  commitment to never forget. We must never forget the

         11  people that died on that day, and we must also never

         12  forget those who are sick and dying for being heroes

         13  and volunteers that day as well.

         14                 What many in Washington have

         15  forgotten is that a silent killer is taking the

         16  lives of rescue, recovery and clean-up workers, as

         17  well as the volunteers, area residents, and workers

         18  and students who were at Ground Zero. All of them

         19  were exposed to toxic air created by the destruction

         20  of the towers and many of them are suffering as a

         21  result.

         22                 A New York City Health Department

         23  study showed an increased incidence of asthma for

         24  those who worked the pile, and the Department of

         25  Health and Human Services study reported that
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          2  illnesses as a result of exposure to 9/11 toxins are

          3  on the rise.

          4                 Progress and help in the sick and

          5  injured can best be measured in small steps, rather

          6  than giant leaps, as critical needs continue to be

          7  unmet after six years.

          8                 My colleagues and I have worked

          9  across party lines, fighting for health monitoring

         10  for all who were exposed, adequate funding to treat

         11  those who are sick or injured, and a comprehensive

         12  federal plan to ensure that anyone impacted by 9/11

         13  gets the care that he or she deserves.

         14                 We have encountered many obstacles

         15  along the way, but we have also achieved some

         16  successes.  Working with Congresswoman Maloney, in

         17  particular, as well as Congressman Nadler, we

         18  restored $125 million in funding after it had been

         19  rescinded. Of that money, 75 million was dedicated

         20  for treatment - the first ever federal dollars to be

         21  directed for that purpose. We were also able to

         22  create a Health Czar, Dr. John Howard, to help

         23  coordinate and oversee the federal response.

         24                 In addition, we included $50 million

         25  for federally funded 9/11 health clinics in the

                                                            61

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  labor HHC appropriations bill, to ensure that the

          3  unsung heroes of 9/11 have access to the care that

          4  they need.

          5                 This represents steps in the right

          6  direction, but there is still much, much more to be

          7  done.

          8                 That is why we drafted HR 3543, the

          9  James Zadroga 9/11 Health and Compensation Act of

         10  2007 - a critical piece of legislation that

         11  addresses several key areas to help our heroes who

         12  are sick today, as well as anyone who falls ill in

         13  the future.

         14                 The bill does the following: Ensures

         15  that everyone exposed to Ground Zero toxins has a

         16  right to be medically monitored, and all who are

         17  sick as a result have a right to treatment.

         18                 Buildings on the expertise, which was

         19  mentioned before, of the Centers of Excellence,

         20  which are currently providing high quality care to

         21  thousands of respondents and ensuring ongoing data

         22  collection and analysis.

         23                 Expands care to the entire exposed

         24  community, which includes residents, area workers

         25  and school children, as well as the thousands of
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          2  people from across the country, who assisted with

          3  the recovery and clean-up effort.

          4                 Provides compensation for loss by

          5  reopening the 9/11 Victims Compensation Fund.

          6                 Over the years we have heard of too

          7  many stories about the young firefighter who ran a

          8  six-minute mile in his thirties but now has trouble

          9  even walking up a flight of stairs. Or the police

         10  officer who was forced to retire in his forties

         11  because he has become much too sick to work. America

         12  cannot turn its back on the men and women who were

         13  there to help America recover after the 9/11

         14  attacks.

         15                 We do not think it is the right thing

         16  to do, which is why this legislation is so

         17  important.

         18                 On a very personal level, I know too

         19  many people across Staten Island and Brooklyn who

         20  are willing to risk their lives. I know many who

         21  risked their lives and gave their lives on September

         22  11th, for the untold story, and it will be told for

         23  years and years to come, or about so many people who

         24  stayed there for the recovery and rescue effort and

         25  who now are in need of our help.
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          2                 This legislation we are proposing

          3  will help them give some degree of certainty.

          4                 Finally, I applaud the work of my

          5  colleagues for coming together to help those whose

          6  health is in danger because of exposure to Ground

          7  Zero on that fateful day.

          8                 I thank the members of this Committee

          9  and this City Council for their continued support,

         10  and if there is one issue that truly we can come

         11  together on in a bipartisan way, it is this.

         12  Therefore, I pledge my full support of these efforts

         13  as we move forward, because I truly affirm to never

         14  forget.

         15                 MS. DRINKWATER: My name is Erin

         16  Drinkwater, and I'll be reading Congressman Nadler's

         17  statement.

         18                 I would like to take this opportunity

         19  to thank the Chairman of the Committee on Civil

         20  Service and Labor, Mr. Joseph Addabbo, and Chairman

         21  of the Committee on Health, Mr. Joel Rivera, for

         22  convening this hearing and inviting me to testify

         23  before you today.

         24                 I would also like to extend my thanks

         25  to the other members of these committees who are
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          2  here with us today.

          3                 As the member of Congress

          4  representing Lower Manhattan, I spent the better

          5  part of these last six years attempting to persuade

          6  the City, State and federal government to act

          7  responsibly in the aftermath of the 9/11 terrorist

          8  attacks, both in terms of providing a proper test

          9  and clean-up of the World Trade Center toxins that

         10  may remain indoors, and for those already facing

         11  environmental health problems from the attacks,

         12  providing them with comprehensive, long-term

         13  monitoring and treatment.

         14                 Last week, along with Congresswoman

         15  Maloney and Congressman Fossella, introduced

         16  essential new legislation that will ensure that

         17  everyone exposed to World Trade Center toxins, no

         18  matter where they may live now or in the future,

         19  will have a right to high quality, medical

         20  monitoring and treatment, and access to a reopen

         21  victim compensation fund for their losses.

         22                 Whether you are a first responder who

         23  toiled without proper protection, or an area

         24  resident, worker or student who was caught in the

         25  plume, or subject to ongoing indoor contamination,

                                                            65

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  if you were harmed by 9/11, you would be eligible,

          3  would be entitled to care.

          4                 It is important to note that this

          5  bill, builds on the best ideas brought to congress

          6  in the past six years and on the infrastructure

          7  already in place by providing critical treatment and

          8  monitoring.

          9                 The Maloney/Nadler/Fossella 9/11

         10  Health and Compensation Act, which is strongly

         11  supported by the New York State AFL-CIO and numerous

         12  resident advocacy groups, would ensure that everyone

         13  exposed to the Ground Zero toxin has a right to be

         14  medically monitored, and that anyone who is sick as

         15  a result has the right to treatment.

         16                 Building on the expertise of the

         17  Centers of Excellence, currently at the FDNY, Mount

         18  Sinai Hospital, Bellevue Hospital, as well as at

         19  Queens College, SUNY Stonybrook and the University

         20  of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey, which are

         21  currently providing high quality health care to

         22  thousands in the local New York area, the bill would

         23  greatly expand access to care.

         24                 As you may know, the federal

         25  government has only provided funding thus far to
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          2  monitor and treat first responders, and therefore,

          3  it has fallen on the City and private donors to

          4  provide care to the rest of the affected population

          5  in the New York area.

          6                 And necessarily, 9/11 volunteers who

          7  came from across the country who don't reside near a

          8  current treatment center have been totally slipping

          9  through the cracks. This bill would remedy this by

         10  providing an entitlement to coverage for the entire

         11  exposed community, residents, area workers and

         12  students, and non-local 9/11 responders and even

         13  tourists were caught in plume, provided that they

         14  meet the eligibility criteria.

         15                 Further, the bill would provide

         16  compensation for economic damages and losses by

         17  reopening the 9/11 victim compensation fund. The

         18  bill would also require the federal government to

         19  collect data about and research the extent of the

         20  severity of the WTC-related illnesses. Specifically

         21  the legislation would establish and fund

         22  coordinating Centers of Excellence to collect and

         23  analyze data, coordinate outreach and develop

         24  medical monitoring and treatment protocols, and

         25  require the US Department of Health and Human
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          2  Services to conduct or support research about

          3  conditions that may be WTC-related, and about

          4  diagnosing and treating WTC-related conditions.

          5                 This is a particularly critical

          6  provision, as there is still much we do not know

          7  about the illnesses and how they may have affected

          8  different exposure populations.

          9                 This bipartisan legislation already

         10  has 53 co-sponsors and the support of Speaker

         11  Pelosi, Governor Spitzer and Mayor Bloomberg.

         12                 I call on the City Council to pass

         13  resolution in full support of this bill. Thank you

         14  for the opportunity to testify today.

         15                 And attached you'll find a summary of

         16  the 9/11 Health and Compensation Act as well, but I

         17  won't go through that.

         18                 MS. OLECHOWSKI: Hello. I'm Tina

         19  Olechowski, and I'll be reading the testimony on

         20  behalf of Carolyn Maloney.

         21                 Good afternoon. I regret that prior

         22  commitments prevent me from being with you today,

         23  but I am grateful for the opportunity to submit

         24  testimony about what Congress is doing to address

         25  the health impacts of the 9/11 terrorist attacks.
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          2                 I thank Chairman Addabbo and Chairman

          3  Rivera for their leadership and their continued

          4  attention to this growing health crisis, which I

          5  believe is one of the most important issues facing

          6  our City and our nation.

          7                 The collapse of the World Trade

          8  Center towers took nearly 3,000 lives in an instant

          9  and released a massive cloud of asbestos, pulverized

         10  concrete and other poisons. These toxins have

         11  sickened thousands and have killed at least eight,

         12  but likely dozens more Americans in the years since

         13  9/11.

         14                 In all, more than 70,000 Americans

         15  reported to the World Trade Center Health Registry

         16  that they were near Ground Zero in the days

         17  following 9/11 and have serious concerns about their

         18  health.

         19                 As you would expect, the majority of

         20  those registered are from New York, New Jersey and

         21  Connecticut. But what many people may not know is

         22  that more than 10,000 Americans from outside the

         23  tristate area have also signed up for the registry.

         24  Amazingly, all 50 states, and 431 of the 435

         25  congressional districts nationwide have someone in
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          2  the World Trade Center Registry.

          3                 This is a health emergency on a

          4  national scale, and it requires a strong federal

          5  response.

          6                 My goal and that of the entire New

          7  York Congressional Delegation is simple, medical

          8  monitoring for everyone exposed to the toxins of

          9  Ground Zero and treatment for anyone who is sick as

         10  a result. It is truly the least our great nation can

         11  do.

         12                 That's why I, and my colleagues

         13  Jerrold Nadler and Vito Fossella introduced the

         14  bipartisan James Zadroga 9/11 Health and

         15  Compensation Act, which would ensure that everyone

         16  exposed to Ground Zero toxins has a right to be

         17  medically monitored and that anyone who is sick as a

         18  result has a right to treatment.

         19                 This legislation builds on the

         20  expertise of the Centers of Excellence which are

         21  currently providing high-quality care to thousands

         22  of responders in ensuring ongoing data collection

         23  analysis.

         24                 Expanding care to the entire exposed

         25  community, the bill also includes care for area
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          2  residents, workers and school children as well as

          3  thousands of people who came from across the country

          4  to assist with the recovery and clean-up efforts.

          5                 Finally, the bill provides

          6  compensation for economic damages and losses by

          7  reopening the September 11th Victim Compensation

          8  Fund. I'm proud to say that our bill is supported by

          9  Governor Spitzer, Mayor Bloomberg, the entire New

         10  York Congressional Delegation and the New York State

         11  AFL-CIO.

         12                 While this comprehensive bill works

         13  its way through the legislative process, Congress

         14  has been taking important steps to tackle this

         15  crisis.

         16                 This year the House has passed two

         17  items of legislation to make sure that federally

         18  financed 9/11 health clinics, including those owned

         19  by Mount Sinai Hospital and the New York City Fire

         20  Department do not have to shut their doors for lack

         21  of funding.

         22                 We included 50 million for 9/11

         23  health clinics in the Iraq War Supplemental Spending

         24  Measure, that was signed into law in May, and the

         25  labor HHS Appropriations Bill passed by the House in
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          2  July, includes another 50 million for 9/11 health

          3  needs.

          4                 This is a good start, but it's only a

          5  start. The Bush Administration has an estimated

          6  federal costs at least 200 million per year to treat

          7  the 32,000 Americans registered at federally funded

          8  9/11 health clinics.

          9                 What's more, this estimate includes

         10  only the cost of treating and monitoring first

         11  responders. We need to extend proper health care to

         12  everyone whose health was affected by the attacks,

         13  whether they are a first responder, a Lower

         14  Manhattan resident, an area worker or a student at a

         15  nearby school.

         16                 Unfortunately, as of right now no

         17  federally financed health screening or treatment is

         18  being provided to these Americans.

         19                 However, while the Bush

         20  Administration has yet to address the impacts of

         21  9/11 on the entire exposed community, the City of

         22  New York has taken much needed action.

         23                 I am grateful for the City's

         24  commitment of nearly $50 million to the World Trade

         25  Center Environmental Health Center at Bellevue
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          2  Hospital, which Mayor Bloomberg announced last week

          3  will be expanding to the Lower East Side and to

          4  Elmhurst, Queens.

          5                 The City's Environmental Health

          6  Center has truly been the lifeline for thousands of

          7  New Yorkers who are suffering as a direct result of

          8  9/11. The Maloney/Nadler/Fossella 9/11 Health and

          9  Compensation Act will give full federal funding to

         10  the Bellevue Environmental Health Center and

         11  designate it as the coordinating Center of

         12  Excellence on par with clinics operated by Mount

         13  Sinai and the FDNY. The bill will also use the

         14  Bellevue Center as a model toward expanding 9/11

         15  health care to all residents, area workers and

         16  students who were exposed to Ground Zero toxins, and

         17  give the Center's patients a guaranteed right to

         18  proper monitoring and care.

         19                 Once again, this health crisis was

         20  caused by an attack not just on New York City, but

         21  on our entire country. Only the federal government

         22  has the resources and the reach to properly address

         23  the health and compensation needs of thousands of

         24  Americans from across the nation whose health was

         25  compromised by World Trade Center attacks.
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          2                 Our country has a moral obligation to

          3  care for those who respond to an act of war. Our

          4  predecessors in government understood this. More

          5  than 65 years ago, in the aftermath of the Pearl

          6  Harbor attacks, American civilians helped recover

          7  the dead and salvage what remained of our Pacific

          8  fleet. Many of these civilians were killed, injured

          9  or made sick as a consequence of their heroic

         10  service to our nation.

         11                 In passing the War Hazards

         12  Compensation Act of 1942, Congress wisely and

         13  compassionately extended health care and financial

         14  relief to civilian responders in need. It is well

         15  past time for Congress and the Administration to do

         16  the same for the heroes and victims of 9/11. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 I just want to take this opportunity

         21  to thank our Congressional representatives and the

         22  staffers, you know, for the fine work that you guys

         23  are doing on this issue.

         24                 We took a City Council delegation

         25  down to Washington last week with our Speaker and
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          2  several other Council members, and one of our key

          3  policy requests was exactly the 9/11 Compensation

          4  Act. And we are actually introducing a resolution

          5  tomorrow, you know, in support of the Act and we

          6  hope that it passes.

          7                 We agree that it's about time that

          8  this takes place, and we know on the federal level

          9  is the only way that it can actually happen, so,

         10  we're hopeful and we are going to do what we can in

         11  our jurisdiction to support your efforts.

         12                 I also just want to thank you guys

         13  for your hospitality. When we got to Washington, we

         14  were able to have a couple of good conversations on

         15  different policy issues. So, if you could let the

         16  representatives know that we enjoyed our time there,

         17  it was well worth it to speak with the other

         18  congressional elected officials about issues

         19  pertaining to New York City.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I just want to

         21  echo my colleague's sentiments. Thank you very much

         22  for your time here, and also the work of all our

         23  Congress representatives, especially Maloney, Nadler

         24  and Fossella. We will continue to do supportive

         25  resos in support of this legislation and we're also
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          2  appreciative that this legislation includes

          3  everyone, whether they were a resident, a City

          4  worker, any kind of worker, anybody affected by it.

          5  So, we appreciate the magnitude of these items of

          6  legislation. So, thank you very much. And, again,

          7  thank you very much for being here.

          8                 MS. OLECHOWSKI: Thank you.

          9                 MS. DRINKWATER: Thank you.

         10                 MR. CAPANO: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         12                 Our next panel is Tom Eppinger,

         13  President of the Uniformed EMS Officers Union, and

         14  Stephen Hess, FDNY EMS Retirees Association.

         15                 We also have been joined by Council

         16  Member Larry Seabrook.

         17                 MR. EPPINGER: My name is Tom

         18  Eppinger. I am the President of the EMS Officers

         19  Union. Shortly I will be joined by Marianne

         20  Pizzatoli, our Disability Pension and Benefits

         21  Coordinator for our Union.

         22                 Our organization represents over 400

         23  Lieutenants and Captains and make a front-line

         24  leadership of FDNY EMS. Our members responded to the

         25  World Trade Center attack on 9/11 and did not leave
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          2  until the last piece of steel was removed.

          3                 Five years later, my members are

          4  paying for their unselfish dedication and

          5  commitment. Many of them are very ill, and feel like

          6  they have been forgotten.

          7                 First, I wish to once again thank

          8  Councilman Addabbo, Speaker Quinn, and the members

          9  of the City Council Civil Service and Labor

         10  Committee and also Health Committee, for their

         11  leadership for holding this hearing today.

         12                 This is a topic that is still of

         13  vital importance to members of my union. Council

         14  members, my union's members still continue to suffer

         15  from their dedication to this City and their

         16  obligation as uniformed members for their response

         17  on September 11th. We are here again to discuss

         18  issues that affect my members.

         19                 I thought the most productive use of

         20  my testimony today would be to concentrate on the

         21  following items:

         22                 - the New York City Law Department

         23  not paying medical bills;

         24                 - choice for medical monitoring and

         25  treatment;
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          2                 - lack of promotion of NYCERS Form

          3  Number 622 and New York State Workers Comp

          4  participation Form WTC 12.

          5                 The New York City Law Department not

          6  paying Workers Compensation treatment bills. Our

          7  office has been notified by our active and retired

          8  members that medical practitioners in treatment

          9  centers will no longer accept to care for our

         10  members. Members have been advised that due to the

         11  New York City Law Department not paying claims,

         12  their practitioners and treatment centers will no

         13  longer care for them for free.

         14                 This causes our members to go without

         15  care and treatment that they desperately need. This

         16  is having a big impact not only on our WTC

         17  responders, but on our hometown doctors.

         18                 Solution: The New York City Law

         19  Department needs to be immediately audited of its

         20  practices regarding the payments to medical

         21  practitioners and treatment centers. This issue is

         22  not new.

         23                 Recently as of last week we had two

         24  more cases that were brought to our attention, that

         25  their doctors have turned them away for treatment
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          2  because the City Law Department has not paid one

          3  member's physician in four years.

          4                 Members have reported that they've

          5  been notified by our medical practitioners and

          6  treatment centers that they have never received a

          7  single payment for injuries that occurred many years

          8  ago.

          9                 Many medical practitioners in this

         10  situation, typically write off the outstanding bills

         11  as a cost of doing business and desire to help the

         12  member, but in this economic climate, how long can

         13  they go on without being paid? And why should they?

         14  The Law Department repeatedly tells these medical

         15  officers that they never received a bill. After four

         16  years, one member, and two for the last, how long

         17  can these doctors expect to believe this story.

         18                 Choice for treatment and monitoring

         19  for WTC health. Currently active and retired

         20  employees of the FDNY are forced to go to the

         21  Department Bureau of Health Services WTC medical

         22  monitoring and treatment program. The union believes

         23  that as medical professionals, we should give

         24  members a choice of provider and treatment center

         25  for their medical problems, just as we do with the
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          2  patients at work.

          3                 As a labor organization, we advocate

          4  for our members to go where they feel comfortable.

          5  Given the history of unresolved issues, we cannot

          6  advocate for our members to go in an

          7  employee-operated monitoring program for an at-work

          8  exposure. Currently there is federal legislation

          9  that has been introduced that includes a provision

         10  for all FDNY members to be forced into an FDNY

         11  Monitoring and Treatment Program for WTC health.

         12                 Many of our active members will not

         13  admit their illnesses during this exam out of fear.

         14  They were afraid that once they informed their

         15  employer that they are ill, they will be placed on

         16  sick leave, and after they exhaust their sick leave

         17  bank, they would be without a paycheck and worse, be

         18  terminated.

         19                 As a result of members not going on

         20  record that they are ill, they secretly suffer and

         21  the health issues only get worse.

         22                 We had a member that went through

         23  radiation post-9/11 for cancer and came to work

         24  right after for weeks out of fear of telling the

         25  job. The member should have not had to go through
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          2  this alone.

          3                 Our retirees should definitely be

          4  able to choose where they seek monitoring and health

          5  care, and should not be forced back to their former

          6  employer for this very invasive monitoring program.

          7  These members cannot obtain treatment if they refuse

          8  the FDNY Monitoring Program -- I'm sorry. These

          9  members cannot obtain treatment if they refuse the

         10  FDNY Monitoring Program, leaving them at a loss,

         11  especially when their personal doctors are not

         12  getting paid by the Law Department.

         13                 Solution: Many of my union and EMS

         14  retirees want choice. They want to be able to choose

         15  any of the Centers of Excellence in the New York

         16  metro area and outside for monitoring and treatment

         17  needs, whether it is the Fire Department, Mount

         18  Sinai or Coordinated Consortium.

         19                 Lack of promotion by the City to

         20  promote NYCERS 622 in the workforce compensation

         21  forms. Currently both NYCERS 622 and the New York

         22  State Workers Compensation WTC 12 participation

         23  forms have had their deadlines extended.

         24                 There have been absolutely no

         25  promotion by the City for employees to complete
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          2  these forms, except for a message appearing on

          3  payroll checks. I have formally asked the Department

          4  to have these forms available and a notary present

          5  at every FDNY EMS annual physical.

          6                 All members are required to attend an

          7  eight-hour medical that includes the physical and

          8  training session. I did not request anyone to

          9  explain anything regarding the forum. I only ask for

         10  a notary be present to sign them.

         11                 I advised the Department that my

         12  union representatives will handle all questions or

         13  they could forward them to our office. That request

         14  was asked almost a year ago and has fallen on deaf

         15  ears.

         16                 The only groups I see doing any

         17  promotion are the unions and NYCOSH for the WTC 12.

         18  My union has put reminders on the front page of our

         19  union home page, sent out mailings, newsletters,

         20  notarized member forms and general membership needs

         21  and now we are preparing to do a poster campaign at

         22  all locations where our members work.

         23                 The solution: The City must

         24  immediately implement an educational program for

         25  City employees to complete these forms. If they do
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          2  not, it sends a message to this union that they do

          3  not want to -- that they want employees not to

          4  participate in filling out these forms to cut down

          5  on liability. If the City of New York has enough

          6  money to spend on a campaign to tell New Yorkers how

          7  great our water is to drink and to stop smoking, we

          8  should have the funds available to advise City

          9  workers their largest asset, to protect their health

         10  and benefits.

         11                 The City must immediately implement a

         12  campaign and a directive for each agency to ensure

         13  all employees complete these forums. On behalf of

         14  the members of the uniformed EMS Officers Union, I

         15  cannot express enough my gratitude to Councilman

         16  Addabbo, this Committee and the City Council for

         17  your commitment on this issue.

         18                 If you have any questions, we're

         19  prepared to answer them. Thank you.

         20                 MR. HESS: Good afternoon, Chairman

         21  Addabbo, Speaker Quinn, distinguished members of the

         22  Civil Service and Labor Committee and guests. My

         23  name is Stephen Hess, and I'm here today to offer

         24  you testimony about what I've had to endure since

         25  9/11.
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          2                 I am a former Emergency Medical

          3  Technician with the New York City Fire Department.

          4                 Can you?

          5                 MS. PIZZITOLA: Sure.

          6                 (The remainder of Mr. Hess's

          7  testimony will be be read by Ms. Pizzitola.)

          8                 MS. PIZZITOLA: "I'm a former

          9  Emergency Medical Technician with the New York City

         10  Fire Department. I was present at the World Trade

         11  Center on September 11th, and was a witness to an

         12  unbelievable tragedy. Unfortunately, the tragedy

         13  continues for me.

         14                 People like me did their jobs that

         15  day without regard to their own personal safety,

         16  became ill, and were ultimately tossed aside by

         17  their agency, the New York City Employees Retirement

         18  System and the New York City Law Department's

         19  Workers Compensation Division.

         20                 New York City's leaders say that the

         21  City has taken care of the medical needs of the few

         22  responders who are now ill. This is just an outright

         23  fabrication.

         24                 Not only are they refusing to take

         25  care of my mounting medical needs, they eventually
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          2  fired me for becoming disabled as a result of 9/11.

          3  I've enclosed a copy of the letter I received

          4  regarding my employment status with the Fire

          5  Department. I was only allowed 18 months of LODI,

          6  Line Of Duty Time contractually, and despite the

          7  fact that the Fire Department's own doctor stated I

          8  was disabled, I was still terminated and NYCERS has

          9  repeatedly refused to grant me disability pension.

         10                 The New York City Employee Retirement

         11  System should carry an even greater portion of the

         12  misconduct I've had to endure. I have been diagnosed

         13  with asthma, chronic cough, GIRD, which is Gastro

         14  Esophageal Reflux Disease, sleep apnea, reactive

         15  arthritis, high blood pressure, and enlarged heart,

         16  a bulging disk in my lumbar spine, clinical

         17  depression. If it were not for my wife's private

         18  health insurance, all of these conditions would be

         19  untreated.

         20                 Initially the New York City Law

         21  Department authorized some treatment, not all, and

         22  even then made it difficult for my treating doctor

         23  to collect his fees. He has gone long periods of

         24  time without reimbursement, even after submitting

         25  his bills numerous times.
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          2                 Since I am no longer on payroll, I

          3  don't seem to exist in their mind. NYCERS has now

          4  refused to accept any further applications for

          5  disability for me and consider this closed. Since I

          6  am not retired, I cannot even apply under the

          7  upgrade bill Governor Pataki signed. I have no

          8  options left and hope for one last lawsuit against

          9  them to help me.

         10                 The asthma, chronic cough and GERD

         11  were diagnosed early, due to the degree of my

         12  exposure. I was within a block of the first tower

         13  when it collapsed and was unable to get far enough

         14  away before the cloud of dust surrounded me and I

         15  began to breathe it in.

         16                 I ran back towards the building to

         17  see if I could get our ambulance and equipment after

         18  being directed by my Captain to secure my ambulance.

         19  Today, I take Advair daily, and use an Albuterol

         20  pump to relieve the shortness of breath and chest

         21  tightness. Nexium is also used on a daily basis to

         22  try and keep the GERD under control. The sleep apnea

         23  was finally diagnosed when I complained of trouble

         24  sleeping. When I consulted with my doctor who

         25  performed a special test, I was told I had a severe
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          2  case as my breathing stopped on an average of 53

          3  times an hour and the longest episode was 40

          4  seconds. I know sleep with a CPAP machine which

          5  maintains a constant flow of air to my lungs while I

          6  sleep.

          7                 I was properly diagnosed with the

          8  Reactive Arthritis in February of 2004. This

          9  condition is affecting my immune system, as well as

         10  causing severe joint and muscle pain and chronic

         11  fatigue. My doctor had not yet diagnosed me with

         12  this condition when I first appeared before the

         13  pension board. The doctors at NYCERS, who only saw

         14  me for 10 minutes, told me my leg pain was due to

         15  medication. Since the initial diagnosis, the

         16  condition has become more severe, as there is

         17  constant pain in my joints and muscles. My doctor

         18  explained to me that the Reactive Arthritis is the

         19  result of breathing in all the contaminants in the

         20  air on 9/11. I was also advised that this condition

         21  will never get better, only worse, which it has.

         22                 Prior to 9/11 I was a healthy person

         23  who worked out on a regular basis. I used to be able

         24  to bench press 250 pounds and spend an hour on a

         25  treadmill. Today two flights of stairs are a
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          2  problem. I cannot carry my grandson, and have no

          3  real quality of life due to being in so much pain

          4  and having such a difficult time to breathe. It has

          5  been life-altering.

          6                 The things I used to take for

          7  granted, like taking my family to the beach or

          8  amusement park are no longer even considered.

          9  Generally I do not have to do anything for this

         10  condition to flare up so bad that I am bedridden.

         11  The simple task of getting out of bed in the morning

         12  can take an hour, if not more. I have to avoid

         13  prolonged exposure to the sun, because ultraviolet

         14  light can cause a severe reaction.

         15                 In May of 2005, I spent some time in

         16  the park with my granddaughter, it was a warm sunny

         17  day. I brought her home and made a stop to say hello

         18  to some friends and began to sweat profusely,

         19  developed extreme muscle pain, panting and became

         20  disoriented.

         21                 I made an attempt to get in my car

         22  and drive home. My friend had to call an ambulance

         23  and I was taken to Staten Island University

         24  Hospital.

         25                 Since that day there have been a
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          2  number of occasions I should have gone to the

          3  hospital but refused. That is until Easter Sunday of

          4  2007. We had family at my house for dinner and later

          5  that night I was not feeling well. I took 20

          6  milligrams of prednisone, a steroid, and usually the

          7  problem lessens within 24 hours. When it hadn't, my

          8  doctor told me again to take 20 milligrams of

          9  prednisone and come to see him the next day. That

         10  morning I could not function. My neighborhood called

         11  and when I did not answer, he came into my house and

         12  found me unable to move, and called my wife, a

         13  registered nurse, to come home.

         14                 Upon her arrival she said we were

         15  going to the hospital. I tried to stand up, I took

         16  two steps and collapsed.

         17                 An ambulance took me to Raritan Bay

         18  Medical Center, and I was admitted for three days.

         19  They diagnosed a lung infection, dehydration,

         20  shortness of breath, fever, joint inflammation and a

         21  dangerously low potassium level.

         22                 The treatment for this included IV

         23  fluids, IV steroids, IV antibiotics, and IV

         24  potassium. Due to this episode, I am afraid that

         25  this will happen again and no one will be there to
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          2  help me the next time.

          3                 I still am able to participate with

          4  the Fire Department World Trade Center Medical

          5  Program. Included was a mental health question

          6  segment, which after you talked with a mental health

          7  professional. They, too, advised me that I'm

          8  clinically depressed and that I am borderline PTSD.

          9  Not a surprise.

         10                 No treatment was offered for this

         11  problem, however, through the help of the Fire

         12  Department EMS Retirees Association, I was provided

         13  with the information that other 9/11 responders have

         14  had the same diagnosis and was even provided with a

         15  study that was done at the University of Montana in

         16  regards to asbestos contamination in the town of

         17  Libby, and the same diseases I have. Yet, no one

         18  here has made the connection to my exposure to World

         19  Trade Center asbestos and 9/11 illnesses.

         20                 I have been denied a pension twice by

         21  NYCERS, and was even told by the Medical Board that

         22  I was fit for duty. The doctors ignored medical

         23  evidence from their own peers and my private

         24  doctors.

         25                 I had to hire an attorney to fight
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          2  for my rights. I filed an Article 78 and twice the

          3  State Court told NYCERS that in their opinion NYCERS

          4  did not consider all the evidence and should

          5  reevaluate my application.

          6                 The Court cannot overrule the Medical

          7  Board but can only tell them to look at it again.

          8  They still denied me.

          9                 It seems ironic the New York City

         10  Pension Board turns me down, but the New York State

         11  Workers Comp Board has awarded me the maximum

         12  allowable compensation payment.

         13                 I had to take out a home equity loan

         14  to keep my house and I'm very close to having to

         15  sell it because I can no longer pay my bills without

         16  compensation wrongly denied.

         17                 Finally, if it were not for the

         18  intervention of people like Mary Pizzitola of the

         19  Fire Department EMS Retirees Association and

         20  advocate for the sick and injured from 9/11, and

         21  more importantly, a great friend, I don't know where

         22  I would be.

         23                 She put me in touch with Mount

         24  Sinai's treatment program. They are overseeing my

         25  treatment with my private doctors and also giving me
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          2  rehab therapy for my back. But most importantly

          3  they're treating my depression and Post Traumatic

          4  Stress Disorder.

          5                 I am going on a weekly basis, trying

          6  to deal with my anger and frustration regarding my

          7  situation and how I've been treated by New York City

          8  bureaucracy.

          9                 I'm never going to be healthy again,

         10  but my hope is to live and have some quality time

         11  with my family and eventually be approved my

         12  pension.

         13                 I hope my story helps you make

         14  changes that will prevent others from having to

         15  endure what I have. It is my hope that your

         16  Committee can help me realize this before it's too

         17  late.

         18                 Thank you."

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Marianne, thank

         20  you very much for reading the testimony. And Mr.

         21  Eppinger, thanks for being here.

         22                 Mr. Hess is just one of thousands of

         23  people who have issues, and we appreciate him being

         24  here as well. Again, we thank him for all the work

         25  that he has done. But this is exactly why we need
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          2  hearings like this. Obviously, we need to find

          3  solutions to this problem.

          4                 I can see Mr. Hess in the back now.

          5  Again, he's just one, just one of so many that have

          6  issues. So, something desperately needs to be done.

          7                 Before I get to questions, I just

          8  have a couple of quick questions.

          9                 Mr. Eppinger, how many of your

         10  members would you say are affected at this point?

         11                 MR. EPPINGER: Exactly right now 65,

         12  out of 415, that have admitted. We begged them to

         13  talk to us. They will not come out. They hide

         14  because of the issue of, it will be a controverted

         15  Workers Comp case, they'll have to use their sick

         16  leave and annual leave. When that is up they get no

         17  grant time from the Fire Department because it's a

         18  Workers Comp case, and then they have the fear of

         19  being terminated.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: As you heard

         21  earlier with Deputy Mayor Gibbs, we are -- again,

         22  this Committee would like to look at how do we

         23  address that issue of paid time off to go get

         24  monitored, treated and so forth, again, to encourage

         25  people to come out, that's an issue that needs to be
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          2  taken up.

          3                 Once again, Mr. Eppinger, I'm going

          4  to congratulate you and commend you on your

          5  testimony and the layout. Not only have you

          6  identified the issue but you also helped us by

          7  giving us a solution, or your idea of a solution,

          8  and we appreciate that.

          9                 A couple of questions I have

         10  regarding that. The Workers Compensation issue, have

         11  you notified, or at least tried to work with the

         12  Administration regarding that issue?

         13                 MR. EPPINGER: We've gotten nowhere

         14  with the City Law Department. We have sat down with

         15  the Director of NYCERS. It was a very productive

         16  meeting. We just have one outstanding issue of we

         17  feel that our members have the right to have their

         18  medical exam audio- or video-taped, such as what

         19  occurs in a Workers Comp review. That is a bone of

         20  contention between us and we're going to let the

         21  lawyers hash it out.

         22                 But we're trying to keep a working

         23  relationship with them. They've opened up their

         24  doors to us, and Marianne and their counsel will

         25  work together.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Of course I

          3  encourage you to continue keeping those line of

          4  communications open with the Administration. I also,

          5  in my conversation subsequent to this hearing with

          6  the Administration will bring up your issues as

          7  well.

          8                 The choice for treatment and

          9  monitoring. You had mentioned a number of times that

         10  your members are fearful, afraid of coming forward,

         11  losing their job. The fear and the afraid issue, has

         12  it happened to your members where they have come

         13  forward, and some repercussions have occurred?

         14                 MR. EPPINGER: Yes. We have two

         15  different diagnostic tests that have been

         16  implemented by the Department, one is the breathing

         17  exam, which is post September 11th, and one is the

         18  EKG that was post merger. We never had these before.

         19  And one example with the breathing, if you do not

         20  have a 60 percent lung capacity, you're out on sick

         21  leave.

         22                 The big issue that people do not

         23  understand is, we are part of the Fire Department,

         24  but we are treated different, but the medical

         25  physicians that treat us do not understand that when
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          2  you put someone out on sick leave for blood

          3  pressure, breathing or their EKG, it's on their own

          4  time. Firefighters, it's unlimited sick. They just

          5  don't come to work and they get paid. Our people,

          6  I've said it before, we're two different distinct

          7  groups, but there's a problem in headquarters where

          8  they don't understand there is a difference in the

          9  way you collect your benefits.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You might have

         11  heard also the questioning along the lines of better

         12  communication with the City agencies. The

         13  Administration obviously touted its website, and the

         14  work of the Health Coordinator; have you brought

         15  your issues up to the Health Coordinator? Has there

         16  been any kind of interaction?

         17                 MR. EPPINGER: I don't know who the

         18  Health Coordinator is for the Fire Department. I

         19  have no idea.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         21                 MR. EPPINGER: And I would think I

         22  would know, since we've been a little public about

         23  our issues.

         24                 One thing that we do, the Fire

         25  Department has done positive, is that they are now
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          2  coming out with a book, an anniversary five-,

          3  six-year book on medical issues to hopefully maybe

          4  stir people up to think that they are ill and to

          5  come forward.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Hopefully that

          7  helps in some way. But I think some of the issue

          8  here to be identified is a communication issue.

          9                 MR. EPPINGER: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And hopefully we

         11  can help in that endeavor and I'll take a moment now

         12  to at least thank the Administration for staying

         13  behind and hearing your concerns, as well. Hopefully

         14  it will get back and, again, we see some change

         15  subsequent to this hearing.

         16                 So, again, I appreciate the

         17  Administration for staying behind.

         18                 Council Member Rivera.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Yes.

         20                 First I want to say thank you for

         21  providing your testimony. I think it's important for

         22  us to hear this side of the conversation when we

         23  move forward.

         24                 I'm particularly interested in Mr.

         25  Hess's case, and I wanted to know, and I'm going to
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          2  ask our staff to do some further research to find

          3  out, you know, is it epidemic? Are there, you know,

          4  is there evidence of this being just more than one

          5  or two cases? Is there something we can do in the

          6  City Council and NYCERS to make sure this does not

          7  continue to happen and hopefully we can do something

          8  retroactively that can benefit Mr. Hess. I know

          9  we've done that in years passed of other, you know,

         10  issues.

         11                 Because obviously if your medical

         12  doctors are telling you that you're not fit for duty

         13  and the State Workers Compensation Board is telling

         14  you, you know, giving you the maximum allowable

         15  compensation for this, it's kind of interesting to

         16  hear NYCERS is taking a totally different route in

         17  saying your fit for duty with so many different

         18  ailments.

         19                 So, that's an issue that we

         20  definitely have to look at, and this is why I hope

         21  on the federal level that Congresswoman Maloney and

         22  Fossella's and Nadler's bill passes, and I hope

         23  maybe we can do something on the City level to, you

         24  know, help Mr. Hess, and also to see if there's any

         25  other individuals.
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          2                 I mean, would you know off the top of

          3  your head --

          4                 MR. EPPINGER: Yes. We have a member

          5  sitting right now in the hospital with a

          6  Hodgkin's-type lymphoma. I can guarantee when we

          7  turn in his Workers Compensation package it will be

          8  controverted. So, he will be using his own sick

          9  leave time, disability insurance, vacation time,

         10  until we get him to a Workers Comp attorney to fight

         11  that in Workers Comp Court.

         12                 It's everybody. We also have a

         13  member, Anthony Vinaria (phonetic), there is

         14  testimony.

         15                 MS. PIZZITOLA: I have to hand it in.

         16                 MR. EPPINGER: We'll hand it in, that

         17  has the same issue. This is a repeated time and time

         18  again with us on what we go through.

         19                 You've exactly hit it on the head.

         20  The Department says you're not fit, Workers Comp,

         21  after you go to them and they approve your case say

         22  you're not fit, you go to NYCERS, they say you're

         23  perfectly well. Then you're in limbo. And this is

         24  the problem.

         25                 And we have a disability pension, and
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          2  it gets held up when that happens at NYCERS, and you

          3  end up paying. We have members that have to pay, end

          4  up paying attorney's fees to fight that, and it's

          5  months and months process.

          6                 MS. PIZZITOLA: It becomes a problem

          7  with the presumption bill, while they're wonderful

          8  in thought, really it only grants you the

          9  opportunity to make an application before the

         10  Pension Board. You have to get passed that actual

         11  board to determine that you are disabled. And even

         12  though your agency, the Fire Department or the

         13  Police Department or EMS will find you disabled,

         14  your private physicians find you disabled, you go

         15  before these medical boards, the 1B boards, NYCERS,

         16  they're not finding you disabled and you're stuck in

         17  this limbo. And this isn't just happening to us,

         18  EMS. This is happening to firefighters, police

         19  officers, this is --

         20                 MR. EPPINGER: Everybody.

         21                 MS. PIZZITOLA: This is a problem

         22  across the board.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I'm going to ask

         24  our staff to do some more research on this. Maybe

         25  there is something they can draft up, and question

                                                            100

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  NYCERS on why they're taking this particular stance,

          3  is there anything that we in the City Council can do

          4  to alter that stance. We're going to look at the

          5  jurisdictional issues, because I'm not sure what our

          6  jurisdiction allows us to actually impose.

          7                 And I want to thank you for your

          8  testimony, because of course, this is a side that we

          9  have to listen to. I mean, you're the first

         10  responders, you were, you know, the men and women

         11  that were there. I was not there, so I can never

         12  understand what it is that you guys went through,

         13  and you know, this is not the appropriate way to say

         14  thank you for the service you provided for us on

         15  that day.

         16                 So, we'll look, we'll have the staff

         17  look into it and see if it's something we can do

         18  and, you know, if we call upon you to, you know,

         19  give us more testimony of members, we may need that.

         20                 MR. EPPINGER: We're here.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I mean, if we can

         22  get a number. I mean, it may take a cross

         23  conversation between your union and others.

         24                 MR. EPPINGER: And we're available for

         25  you, Council member, as we are Councilman Addabbo,
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          2  we can't tell you how much it means to us that the

          3  City Council is taking a stance. It was three

          4  hearings ago, it was in March. I think the City

          5  Council through its leadership, we've gotten the

          6  City to do some things. Is it perfect? Is it what we

          7  want? No. They've acknowledged it. They're fighting

          8  for funding.

          9                 The thing that bothers me is that,

         10  this is the second time I've heard this said, they

         11  need funding so they can get on past the lawsuits. I

         12  don't want to hear that anymore. I don't want to

         13  hear that you can't take care of EMT Hess, or

         14  Lieutenant Vinario, any one of my members, because

         15  we need to move past the litigation.

         16                 I don't want to hear that anymore. I

         17  want to hear that we're taking care of the people,

         18  we're paying their pensions, and letting them go on

         19  with their lives, that we hope they have a long one

         20  with their family, but every time we hear this. The

         21  City has got to stop this, because this is the

         22  second time I've heard it said. I've heard it said

         23  in Washington, and I've said at this table, and it's

         24  disgusting. Because I'm a first responder, we just

         25  went, and as you know that, and we'll do it again,
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          2  and as a City resident I find it horrible that we

          3  can't pay people who are ill because of a lawsuit.

          4  We wouldn't have lawsuits if people were taken care

          5  of. It's simple.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: I mean, I know

          7  you hear, we just finished a 9/11 ceremony a couple

          8  of weeks ago, and I know you hear politicians like

          9  us say never forget, but I'm going to say to you

         10  don't give up. Because I think that what happens is,

         11  what you'll find is that if time goes by and people

         12  start giving up, there will be less incentive for

         13  people to take action.

         14                 So, my request for you is don't give

         15  up. I know it's troublesome, I know it's hard, you

         16  know, to come before different agencies and the

         17  different bodies that are involved, you know, but

         18  keep the focus, keep the drive, and realize that

         19  you're not only doing it for yourself, you're doing

         20  it for your brothers and sisters that, you know, may

         21  have passed before you or may pass in the future

         22  without proper benefits. So, just to stay focused.

         23                 MR. EPPINGER: And we appreciate that

         24  because we're a small group. We're about 2,000

         25  people, and we know almost everybody. And these are
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          2  friends. These are people we went to the Academy

          3  with, we work with, this is horrible. And it will be

          4  me. It will be me one day sick. It's just a matter

          5  of time. I was there for every collapse that

          6  happened and long time afterwards, and it was

          7  because I wanted to be here. But now I'm going to

          8  lose time with my family because I had a feeling of

          9  dedication to the City.

         10                 One thing we wanted to bring up,

         11  Councilman Stewart brought up, about interior

         12  buildings, Discovery Magazine, which we'll forward

         13  to you, there is an article we just found. There is

         14  an article called "9/11 Cover-up," by Michael Mason,

         15  September 2007, on how the Woolworth Building, and I

         16  think that's pretty close to here, there is offices

         17  that are occupied by federal attorneys that were at

         18  World Trade Center 7. They were moved to the

         19  Woolworth Building and were told that it was clean

         20  as a whistle. Guess what's happening? Their people

         21  are getting sick now. They weren't sick before. They

         22  now are all getting sick in one bunch. That's very

         23  close to the proximity of this building. Has

         24  anything been ensured for the safety of you, us,

         25  while we're in here? It's a good question.
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          2                 MS. PIZZITOLA: That building was

          3  cleared by the EPA and their landlord. It wasn't

          4  until they hired a private firm did they find that

          5  their building, their offices, was grossly

          6  contaminated.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Well, we know

          8  very well that the EPA's statements after 9/11 were

          9  not the best. I mean, in the congressional hearings

         10  we heard Christie Whitman and everyone testify to

         11  the different statements.

         12                 So, again, I just want to thank you

         13  for being here. I don't know if my colleagues have

         14  anything?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I just want to

         16  echo the sentiments again of my colleague. Thank

         17  you. Thank you for being here, shedding light on the

         18  issue, putting a face on the problem. And, again,

         19  your issues are shared by thousands I'm sure. So,

         20  the bottom line is, thank you. And we look forward,

         21  and, again, with the Administration still in the

         22  room, we look forward to working on these issues and

         23  hopefully some resolve.

         24                 MR. EPPINGER: Thank you.

         25                 MS. PIZZITOLA: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thanks so much.

          3                 Our next panel, Pat McGreen, Eli

          4  Kent, Bruce Booker and Jim Woodworth of the New York

          5  Rescue Detoxification Program.

          6                 After this panel, our last panel will

          7  be represented by the Uniformed Firefighters

          8  Officers Association, Lieutenant Eddie Boles.

          9                 I thank this panel for being here,

         10  and please state your name and give your testimony,

         11  please.

         12                 MR. KENT: Okay. Hello. My name is Eli

         13  Kent. I'm Organizing Director of Local 78 Laborers.

         14  We have the union of asbestos, lead, hazardous waste

         15  removal workers, we've got about 3,000 members, well

         16  over 2,000 of whom were down for days to weeks to

         17  months to years at the World Trade Center at Ground

         18  Zero site.

         19                 I'm actually reading testimony, I'm

         20  here in place of Jorge Roldan. I'm going to be

         21  reading his testimony. He's sorry he couldn't make

         22  it. He is actually today with the President of

         23  Ecuador, so...

         24                 "My name is Jorge Roldan. I am the

         25  Recording Secretary and Health and Safety Officer
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          2  for Laborers Local 78. Our members work with

          3  asbestos, lead and hazardous waste and were

          4  intensively involved in the cleanup efforts

          5  following the attacks.

          6                 On September 11th, 2001, I rushed to

          7  the site as I had members of my union working in the

          8  building and I wanted to see what I could do to

          9  help. Thank God my members got out of the building

         10  to safety.

         11                 My eyes couldn't believe what they

         12  were seeing on that day. I won't describe the

         13  horrors that I saw before the buildings collapsed

         14  but I will tell you that what I saw changed me

         15  forever. Since that day there has not been a minute

         16  that went by that I didn't feel the pain of 9/11 and

         17  it was ruining my life. My wife couldn't understand

         18  why I couldn't just get over the anger and cough,

         19  and all of my other symptoms. I couldn't understand

         20  why either, and I became an angry person, but didn't

         21  know how or why.

         22                 For the past five and a half years I

         23  was only sleeping three to four hours a night. I had

         24  a chronic dry cough, muscle aches and joint pain.

         25  Fatigue so bad that I couldn't drive for more than
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          2  an hour at a time before having to pull over and

          3  sleep.

          4                 I couldn't read. I had rashes, and

          5  emotionally I just wasn't right.

          6                 I came to the detox program about

          7  five weeks ago after a business trip to Florida. I

          8  had been playing volley ball at the beach for about

          9  three minutes, when I had a severe asthma attack and

         10  was gasping for air. I thought I was going to die.

         11  This had never happened to me before and it

         12  frightened me. Now, thanks to the people at the

         13  detox program, in just over a month my life has been

         14  totally changed. After a few days on the program my

         15  cough disappeared, I'd sleep for ten hours straight,

         16  ten straight hours after many years of not being

         17  able to. I have no pain anywhere. I can read. At

         18  work I drive three to seven hours a day and have no

         19  problem. My life is completely new and 100 percent

         20  the opposite of what it was.

         21                 The things that came out of my body

         22  while at the detox program are hard to explain. I

         23  was sweating out black and brown stuff. I also had

         24  strong odors that were present at Ground Zero coming

         25  out of my pores after five plus years. Incredible.
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          2                 It is amazing how much this dotox

          3  program has done, not only for me but for my family

          4  as well. I feel like I am a good husband and father

          5  again and enjoy spending time at home. I made good

          6  friends at the detox program and feel like I've got

          7  another family now. This program has helped me in

          8  ways that regular medicine and many doctors didn't

          9  and couldn't. I would like to thank the entire

         10  staff. They are the best. They treated me like a

         11  person, not a number.

         12                 It is essential that this program be

         13  one of the choices that is available to our members.

         14  It makes no sense it has not received the same level

         15  of support as other programs.

         16                 We need you to help change this.

         17  Nothing could be more important to our members.

         18  Thank you."

         19                 And the detox program, what's the

         20  exact title of it?

         21                 MR. WOODWORTH: New York Rescue

         22  Workers Detoxification Program.

         23                 MR. KENT: Yes, the New York Rescue

         24  Workers Detoxification Program.

         25                 MR. BOOKER: Thank you for this
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          2  opportunity to speak on behalf of my fellow

          3  officers. My name is Bruce Booker. I served the New

          4  York City Police Department for 22 years. I recently

          5  retired as a Sergeant. At the time of the attacks I

          6  worked at the Manhattan Criminal Court, just mere

          7  blocks from the World Trade Center.

          8                 I was at the site the night that it

          9  happened. I was on duty there approximately another

         10  dozen times during the rescue and recovery

         11  operations.

         12                 However, because I worked so close in

         13  proximity to the World Trade Center, I was exposed

         14  to toxic smoke, fumes and dust on a daily basis. We

         15  were hit by the horrible cloud the day it happened,

         16  and we lived and worked in this aftermath.

         17                 In my case the effects were not

         18  immediately noticeable. I'm one of the thousands

         19  that developed health problems years after the

         20  attack. After a couple of years, I began to notice

         21  my health had gone downhill. I had constant fatigue,

         22  I gained weight. My schedule was so hectic that I

         23  didn't notice I had sleeping problems. But I did. I

         24  had more difficulty focusing and would often forget

         25  things.
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          2                 In 2005 I developed pneumonia in my

          3  right lung. My doctors were unable to explain why

          4  this happened. It was a long, slow recovery. My

          5  immune system was compromised and I developed

          6  shingles on the right side of my chest.

          7                 My doctors thought it might be HIV,

          8  all the tests came up negative. Every test came up

          9  negative. I had biopsies, CT scans but nothing came

         10  up. There was no rhyme or reason for my problems.

         11                 At this point, my doctor and I began

         12  to think that the World Trade Center might be at

         13  fault. As I looked into it, I noticed that the

         14  problems connected to exposures there were the same

         15  as mine - inability to concentrate, immune system

         16  problems, sleeping problems - all the same symptoms

         17  that I was having.

         18                 I heard about the detoxification

         19  program from someone at my church, St. Paul's

         20  Community Baptist Church. I was interested because

         21  this person also worked in law enforcement, but

         22  since all the attempts to help me hadn't gone

         23  anywhere, I was skeptical. But I realized I didn't

         24  have anything to lose and I enrolled.

         25                 I've been on the program for several
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          2  weeks now, and the changes are dramatic. In the

          3  sauna, I have had the sense that toxins are escaping

          4  from my body. For about five straight days, I was

          5  releasing a very strong smell of ammonia. I now have

          6  my energy back. I have the ability to focus again,

          7  and I'm back to where I was and where I need to be

          8  to enjoy my life.

          9                 The rescue workers need to have the

         10  option to choose the program they want. And this

         11  program should be one of their choices. The funding

         12  that has gone to Bellevue and Mount Sinai is making

         13  it possible to gather a lot of information, but at

         14  this point what we really need is our focus to be on

         15  treatment.

         16                 We don't have a lot of time. As time

         17  passes, we're going to see guys becoming sicker and

         18  sicker. I will say this is a 10 13. That's the code

         19  that officers use to describe emergency situations,

         20  when another officer needs help. There is a

         21  potential for more people to die because of their

         22  exposures than died on that terrible day. If that

         23  happens, it will be because of government neglect.

         24  The sooner you move, the more lives that can be

         25  saved. The ball is squarely in your court.
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          2                 I thank you for your interest in this

          3  program, and I hope that you will find a way to do

          4  the right thing for those who need help.

          5                 Now, as I look at the slogan above

          6  your head, it says "A government of the people, by

          7  the people, and for the people." Well, I am the

          8  people. So, if this government is truly for the

          9  people, there is no way we could be opposed to a

         10  program that helps.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. McGREEN: Good afternoon. Thank

         13  you for listening to my testimony. My name is Pat

         14  McGreen. I'm a Lieutenant on the Fire Department,

         15  but I'm here representing myself.

         16                 I went through the program in 2005. I

         17  had a lot of the symptoms that everyone else was

         18  speaking of. The Fire Department medical doctor put

         19  me on two different kinds of medication, Advair,

         20  Palmacort. I had sleep apnea. I was withdrawn from

         21  my family. I had fatigue. Not as severe as the other

         22  guy, but I would, every once in awhile I would just

         23  get up and I had to go back to sleep, like I didn't

         24  sleep at all at night.

         25                 I did this program for 37 days. It's
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          2  basically a holistic approach. It's not a

          3  medication, which is just masking the problem. I was

          4  in the program for 37 days, and I had a lot of

          5  toxins coming out of me. It was black, and it was

          6  coming out of me very forcefully, and after that I

          7  was a new person. I was clear. I got my energy back.

          8  I was able to exercise again, because you have a lot

          9  of the toxins in your body, you start to put on a

         10  lot of weight, and you are doing less activities and

         11  that was just a snowballing effect.

         12                 Now I'm getting back into shape. I

         13  can go to the gym. I don't have any of the sleep

         14  apnea anymore. I get a full night's rest. I don't

         15  have any of the symptoms that I had, and it was all

         16  because of this 9/11 detox program.

         17                 Now, they want to do a lot of tests.

         18  They've been doing tests for six years now, but no

         19  one is doing anything to cure it. And this is a

         20  program that is, and I've sent a lot of people to

         21  this program. I probably recommended about 25 people

         22  to this program because it worked for me. Everyone

         23  that came out of the program that I sent, they were

         24  thanking me. They had their wives thank me at

         25  certain functions.
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          2                 I can't say enough about this 9/11

          3  detox program, and I don't see why the City doesn't

          4  fund it.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. WOODWORTH: Thank you, Chairmen

          7  Addabbo and Rivera, and other members, for the

          8  opportunity to testify before you and the Council

          9  today.

         10                 My name is Jim Woodworth, and I am

         11  president of the New York Rescue Workers

         12  Detoxification Project. It is my responsibility to

         13  manage community services and government affairs for

         14  the project, and I'm here today on behalf of the

         15  rescue workers. It was important to them that the

         16  Council hears their voice.

         17                 I have worked at our Manhattan

         18  facility since it opened its doors to rescue workers

         19  in September 2002. I have made numerous

         20  presentations and educated thousands of

         21  firefighters, police officers, iron workers,

         22  laborers, sanitation workers and emergency medical

         23  personnel regarding the services our physicians

         24  provide to address the toxic effects of 9/11.

         25                 I have also conducted in-depth
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          2  personal interviews with more than 1,000 of these

          3  men and women. I have heard their stories of danger,

          4  tragedy and heroism that are beyond belief. And I

          5  can tell you in great detail what the health

          6  concerns of these individuals are.

          7                 The thing that I have learned that is

          8  most relevant to this hearing can be stated in a few

          9  words. They are sick and they want their lives and

         10  their health back. The more time that passes, the

         11  more intense this need has become.

         12                 It's now been more than six years

         13  since their exposures. The last year has brought

         14  terrible news, serious illnesses, even deaths. Many

         15  physicians now agree that the rescue workers are

         16  going to need care for the rest of their lives.

         17                 Many of the men and women who come to

         18  us are in their 30s and 40s. They want to stay on

         19  the job. They want to have enough energy left at the

         20  end of the day to interact with their spouses and

         21  children. They'd like to be able to take a deep

         22  breath and to get a full night sleep.

         23                 Under the guidance of project

         24  physicians, 90 percent of the 825 rescue workers who

         25  have completed our program have accomplished these
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          2  goals.

          3                 Those who have recovered are just as

          4  baffled as we as to that only a handful of City

          5  officials seem to find this worth celebrating. And

          6  I'd like to point out that both Chairman Rivera and

          7  Addabbo have toured our program, met with many of

          8  the rescue workers and we're grateful for you taking

          9  the time.

         10                 This only adds to a concern that many

         11  rescue workers have, that they are being forgotten,

         12  asked simply to get on with it, when all the

         13  evidence suggests that they're at great risk. Nearly

         14  20 of your Council colleagues have toured our

         15  facility and met with the rescue workers that we've

         16  served since April of this year.

         17                 The men and women we have served are

         18  extremely grateful to see that members of the City

         19  Council care enough to take an honest look at the

         20  excellent results we obtain every week. They want to

         21  see their fellow rescue workers have the same

         22  opportunity to restore their quality of life as they

         23  did.

         24                 Our physicians understand that a

         25  broad range of therapy will be needed to address the
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          2  aftermath of the 9/11 exposures, and are simply

          3  asking for the detoxification program that we are

          4  providing to be included among the choices available

          5  to the rescue workers.

          6                 The many individuals, foundations and

          7  corporations who have supported this non-profit

          8  humanitarian initiative, agree that it is time for

          9  the public sector to expand its efforts to bring

         10  relief.

         11                 Thank you for your leadership in this

         12  effort. You cannot move forward too quickly.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you very

         14  much, gentlemen.

         15                 Mr. Woodworth, I want to say thank

         16  you for the tour that you gave me a couple of months

         17  back. And I just wanted to see if you could walk us

         18  through the process once again, and what happens

         19  when a rescue worker walks into your facility? What

         20  is the process that they undergo?

         21                 MR. WOODWORTH: What happens is

         22  usually they're referred by a fellow rescue worker,

         23  a psychologist, psychiatrist or other medical

         24  practitioner that's aware of our project. They come

         25  in. I meet with them. I do a full education as to
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          2  why they're ill from the chemical exposures, and

          3  prescreen to make sure that if there is any serious

          4  catastrophic medical conditions where I know that

          5  our physician would not be able to accept them, if

          6  they actively have cancer, if they have had a major

          7  heart attack or a stroke or some other terminal

          8  illness, you know, we would not even send them to

          9  the physician for the physical exam. So, once that

         10  education step is done, they then see the physician

         11  for a full and complete physical examination and

         12  history.

         13                 We do a pulmonary function test,

         14  EKGs, complete blood work, which include thyroid

         15  functions, kidney functions, liver enzyme levels,

         16  cholesterol triglicerides and many other tests that

         17  we like to measure before and after results and we

         18  see dramatic improvements in the pulmonary function

         19  test and bloodwork, pre and post detoxification. And

         20  we do this on every single patient. They are IQ

         21  tested and personality tested before and after, so

         22  that we can measure subjective changes in, you know,

         23  just the way they think and how they feel

         24  emotionally.

         25                 Once the doctor has given them the
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          2  okay, and knows that we can safely put them through

          3  the process, then they start the detoxification

          4  regimen.

          5                 It's been stated over the years

          6  incorrectly that our physicians are opposed to

          7  people being on medications. That's not true. In

          8  fact, our physicians, if they find somebody with

          9  diabetes, or uncontrolled high blood pressure, or

         10  other things, have prescribed rescue workers

         11  appropriate medications. And both of our physicians

         12  are board certified family practice physicians in

         13  the State of New York.

         14                 So, the doctor then approves them,

         15  and then we start the actual regimen of removing the

         16  chemicals.

         17                 What most people don't understand is

         18  when the human body gets exposed to toxic chemicals,

         19  through inhalation, ingestion, or even through the

         20  skin, the body breaks it down and eliminates the

         21  vast majority of it, but small particles actually

         22  lodge in the body fat and brain tissue. These can be

         23  measured easily by taking fat biopsies, which we

         24  have done, and/or blood samples, or chemicals like

         25  dioxins and PCBs, which we have found in
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          2  firefighters and residents of Lower Manhattan two

          3  years after 9/11, and then we measure them again

          4  after we detoxify them.

          5                 So, the body holds onto a very small

          6  amount of these toxins but have great physical and

          7  mental affects that you've heard from people like

          8  Mr. Hess, and these rescue workers prior to being

          9  treated.

         10                 So, what we do is we go in, we break

         11  the fat down very rapidly using Vitamin B3, along

         12  with mild exercise, and we have people that are on

         13  six, eight, ten medications, just to breathe, when

         14  they arrive at our facility, and they can barely

         15  walk on a treadmill, and there is nothing more

         16  beautiful than two weeks later to see them jogging

         17  and three weeks later to see them running and

         18  actually feeling better and breathing like a normal

         19  human being again.

         20                 So we do whatever level of exercise

         21  that they can tolerate for 25 minutes, to get the

         22  heart rate beating at an aerobic range, the Vitamin

         23  B3 then enhances the human body's ability to

         24  mobilize fat, along with that exercise. We

         25  intentionally put the toxic chemical from the fat
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          2  back into the blood. They then do five to seven

          3  low-temperature ventilated dry saunas, we hydrate

          4  them with purified water, salt and potassium by

          5  mouth so that they don't get headaching, nauseated

          6  or faint, and it is unbelievable until, as you know

          7  as when you came in and toured, to see what actually

          8  comes out of people.

          9                 We have a fireman on the program

         10  today who is sweating out fiberglass, he was there

         11  when the buildings came down, visible to the naked

         12  eye.

         13                 We have another fireman who is 42

         14  years old who has been sweating out as black as

         15  night for two weeks straight. Sergeant Booker here

         16  has been sweating out the acrid ammonia smell that

         17  hung over Lower Manhattan for six months, as do 50

         18  percent of the other rescue workers, even six years

         19  after the incident.

         20                 We have firefighters and police

         21  officers who cough up dust from their sputum, from

         22  their lungs, visible to the naked eye. You know, so

         23  whatever is stored in the body, we can effectively

         24  and safely cover about 34 days, put it from the fat

         25  back into the blood stream and excrete it through
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          2  the urine, the bowels, the sweat, the oil glands.

          3                 The last thing that they get each day

          4  is a combination of polyunsaturated cold-pressed

          5  oils that they take by mouth that will bind those

          6  very tiny particles that we dump from the fat into

          7  the blood, it binds up with that good, clean oil and

          8  then just gets dumped out the urine, bowels, sweat

          9  and the oil glands. And they also get a complete

         10  array of vitamin, minerals and amino acid for after

         11  breakfast, after lunch, before bed, because as we're

         12  wiping out toxins, we know we're also depleting

         13  nutrients and you have to replace them. And in a

         14  nutshell, that's what we do. And there is no charge

         15  to any rescue worker. We've raised $6.5 million in

         16  the last four and a half years, mostly from the

         17  private sector, although the City Council of New

         18  York has given our program $330,000 in funding, and

         19  we would like to increase that amount dramatically

         20  so that we can reach out to the thousands of people

         21  that are waiting for our services that I have not

         22  been able to raise the money for on the private

         23  sector.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Now, what level

         25  of funding do you think is needed for this program?
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          2                 MR. WOODWORTH: Well, I mean, you take

          3  Local 78, Jorge Roldan and the President at Union

          4  Edison SevArano (phonetic) have asked that we

          5  provide the service to all 2,000 members. And to do

          6  that, you know, that's a great expense. We've

          7  treated over 100 Local 78. Jorge told me as recently

          8  as two weeks ago that they've had 38 members that

          9  have passed away from different types of cancers,

         10  heart attacks, as a result of their exposures to

         11  PCBs and dioxins.

         12                 They've had eight new cases of cancer

         13  diagnosed in the last 90 days, and they're workers

         14  are frightened because some of them spent up to a

         15  full year removing the toxic dust from all the

         16  buildings around the site. Most of their members are

         17  from Ecuador, Colombia, Dominican Republic, Mexico

         18  and Poland. Most do not speak English. We have

         19  translators so that when we've treated the 100

         20  members that we could actually provide this service

         21  in their language.

         22                 We've treated rescue workers from

         23  every City Council district in the City of New York.

         24  We have one the Upper West Side, but we have a

         25  person on the program right now who lives in the
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          2  Upper West Side, so as of two weeks ago, every

          3  district has now been represented that we've treated

          4  somebody from that City Council district.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: And has there

          6  been other, since I mean obviously, you know,

          7  there's been about six years, you know, since 9/11

          8  took place, has there been outside independent

          9  studies that have shown the efficacy of the problem,

         10  in terms of the years following that?

         11                 MR. WOODWORTH: Well, here's the

         12  thing: Prior to 9/11 there was never a large

         13  chemical exposure of this magnitude that you could

         14  do a very thorough controlled study with a control

         15  pre and post. Now, that's the good news. The bad

         16  news is 9/11 did occur, and now we have a large

         17  enough group of people, we actually have Dr. David

         18  Carpenter who is a Harvard graduate MD, and he's a

         19  PhD toxicologist, he happens to be the former

         20  Director of the School of Public Health at the

         21  University of Albany, he is one of the leading

         22  experts in the country on PCBs and dioxins. He has

         23  written a full study through the IRB process already

         24  that all we need is the funding for it. We've

         25  submitted to NIH three times and have been denied
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          2  three times. We will submit again within the next 90

          3  days. And we would like to get that study funded,

          4  and if the City Council could find that that would

          5  be worthwhile, we want our program to be studied

          6  independently for the outcomes. But when you look at

          7  Mount Sinai and Bellevue that have received well

          8  over $100 million and the Fire Department another 50

          9  plus million dollars, to document the illnesses,

         10  that's an important thing, but, you know, they have

         11  said to us, well, you need to do an independent

         12  controlled study. Well, they're not even holding

         13  themselves to that standard. We're willing to be

         14  held to that standard but we would like a

         15  governmental agency, whether it's NIH, the State of

         16  New York or the City, to step up and pay for that

         17  funding. And to get that study done.

         18                 It's waiting. We have the rescue

         19  workers that can participate in that, and we would

         20  be very happy to have that money go directly to the

         21  University of Albany and get that study completed

         22  immediately.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

         24                 MR. WOODWORTH: You're welcome.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to thank
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          2  this panel for being here. We have questions from

          3  Council Member Sears, and I want to acknowledge

          4  Council Member Sears for being here. I just want to

          5  say thank you to the workers who were again, during

          6  and after 9/11 helping out and doing what you did

          7  there. Thank you. Too often we don't say thank you,

          8  so thank you very much.

          9                 Council Member Sears.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Good afternoon.

         13                 MR. WOODWORTH: Hello, Councilman.

         14  Thank you for touring the project a few months ago.

         15  We appreciate that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Oh, it was

         17  really an eye-opener, and the time we had was brief,

         18  and I know the work you do is pretty outstanding.

         19                 My question is, and I don't think I

         20  asked it when I was there, what happens, or what are

         21  the numbers that you may have found that are so

         22  chronically ill that will need continuous treatment

         23  the rest of their lives, because I was reading some

         24  of the testimony before I got here and that point

         25  was made that some of them may be chronically ill
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          2  and they're going to need treatment the rest of

          3  their lives. Where does this treatment fit in? Who

          4  takes over, and do their insurance carriers take

          5  over that? Because I can see this is a complex issue

          6  when it comes to funding the work that you do.

          7                 MR. WOODWORTH: It is a complex issue,

          8  and I'm not the physician. You know, Dr. Gelb is out

          9  of town. She had a family emergency and apologized

         10  for not being here. But here is what I know: you can

         11  take somebody, you know, like Lieutenant McGreen

         12  here, who prior to coming to our program, you know,

         13  what was your prospect of actually feeling better

         14  again and getting back to the way you were

         15  physically and mentally, breathing, running prior to

         16  doing the program?

         17                 MR. McGREEN: In the beginning I

         18  thought I could handle it myself, that the symptoms

         19  would clear out and then I would be better, and I

         20  was just kind of dealing with it on my own. The

         21  doctors wanted to just give me medication to cover

         22  it, or just to help me breathe, but there is no

         23  program out there. There is no program out there. I

         24  was lucky to hear about this one from a fellow

         25  firefighter, and what happens is you just start
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          2  breaking down because you can't handle it. There's

          3  just too much toxins and you just can't self-detox

          4  because it was too much.

          5                 So, when I went through the program,

          6  it was able to give me that umph and get rid a lot

          7  of the major toxins that I had. It basically gave me

          8  my life back. But if I didn't go through the

          9  program, I would have been just like the EMS, you

         10  know, he's basically on his wit's end. He doesn't

         11  know what to do. I probably would have been in that

         12  situation, and I wouldn't be here telling you my

         13  story.

         14                 MR. WOODWORTH: How many meds are you

         15  still on, and how often are you seen?

         16                 MR. McGREEN: I'm on no meds. I was on

         17  two meds to begin with, and I'm on nothing now. I've

         18  totally cleared out. I don't need any of that. My

         19  lungs is cleared out. Basically I got my life back.

         20                 MR. WOODWORTH: We just did a random

         21  survey of 200 of the first 825 that have completed

         22  the program, and over 80 percent are not on their

         23  inhalers, not having to take their medications. And,

         24  you know, once a person finishes this program, we

         25  have many patients where our physicians have
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          2  referred the patient back to their doctors, as they

          3  will do with every single person, and it seems now

          4  that those interventions that they were trying to

          5  utilize to bring relief to these men and women that

          6  were getting no results, now can work.

          7                 We have other individuals that

          8  literally were on 27 medications a day and they're

          9  35 years old, and even any other physicians that see

         10  them go, how can you medically justify that? And

         11  their mind-boggled. And, you know, we have at least

         12  40 New York City firemen that were on the second and

         13  third step of their retirement that are still

         14  full-duty and it's four years later, three years

         15  later and two years later. And I was told that it

         16  costs $3 million to retire a New York City

         17  firefighter, plus they get their three-quarters pay,

         18  which they deserve if they're sick, and they need

         19  that, but, you know, we've had at least 40 of them

         20  that did not want to retire, they were too young and

         21  they love their job that are back to work, including

         22  police officers. So, you know, our physicians will

         23  refer back to their treating physicians during and

         24  even after they finish our program and get better

         25  results.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just when they

          3  start your program, have most of them advised their

          4  physician that they are undergoing your program? And

          5  do you have a working relationship with their

          6  physician?

          7                 MR. WOODWORTH: We do with some of

          8  them. For example, people with heart conditions and

          9  serious pulmonary conditions. It's not uncommon that

         10  Dr. Gelb requires that the patient inform their

         11  cardiologist and their pulmonologist, and their

         12  counselor, and we get written permission from them

         13  that the person is well enough, cardiovascular-wise,

         14  to be able to even undertake the program. So, there

         15  is no problem with us working with other physicians,

         16  it's just the reverse. You know, a lot of physicians

         17  that don't know about our process, they just don't

         18  know, so they don't want to make a mistake, and we

         19  respect that, so the patients themselves, you know,

         20  they want to take control of their life and their

         21  health again, and they realize that they've gone

         22  down a certain track for six years with little or no

         23  relief, and unfortunately, we're kind of a last stop

         24  for them. So, they just take charge themselves and

         25  say, I'm doing it. I don't care what anybody says.
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          2  Because you fixed my friend or my five friends and

          3  they want the same relief. But we work with the

          4  physicians as much as possible.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I certainly

          6  want to thank you, because it is really an

          7  experience for me to spend a little time up there

          8  with all of you, and I think the achievements are

          9  pretty outstanding. Remarkable.

         10                 MR. WOODWORTH: Yes. Well, thank you

         11  for saying that. We want to work with the City. We

         12  want to work with the City Council. We want to work

         13  with the new 9/11 health person Jeffrey Hon, you

         14  know, we want to work with everybody, and we're

         15  willing to do the study and your help would be

         16  greatly appreciated. Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         19  Council Member Sears.

         20                 Mr. Woodworth, I want to thank you

         21  for your efforts toward our workers who are ill.

         22  Thank you very much for your efforts there. Again,

         23  for the workers, thank you for your dedication, as

         24  well. If somebody wanted to get in touch with the

         25  New York Detoxification Project, how would they get
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          2  in touch with you?

          3                 MR. WOODWORTH: What they can do is

          4  they can call my office, 212-587-3961, or they can

          5  go to our website, Nydetox.org.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Earlier, and

          7  I'll end up on this, earlier Council Member Mike

          8  Nelson asked Deputy Mayor Gibbs her opinion about

          9  your program, she didn't have enough information to

         10  make a statement. So, I suggest you reach out, if

         11  you can.

         12                 MR. WOODWORTH: We have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         14                 MR. WOODWORTH: We've actually invited

         15  the Deputy Mayor down to our facility, the Mayor,

         16  and others that represent the City. When Mr.

         17  Bloomberg, Mayor Bloomberg put together a panel to

         18  look at all the different programs, I met with one

         19  of the individuals and invited he and all of those

         20  panel members in November and October to come take a

         21  tour, and I left at least five messages for them

         22  with no response.

         23                 So, you know, I'm not sure what the

         24  situation is with them, other than they were

         25  non-responsive. But, again, Deputy Mayor Gibbs and
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          2  anybody else in the Administration, I think if they

          3  came down and took a look like you people have and

          4  their colleagues, I think they would see, you know,

          5  we're getting results. And it's not for every single

          6  person, but it's for a large percentage of arrest

          7  and recovery workers.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well, again,

          9  thank you very much. We look forward to working with

         10  you.

         11                 MR. KENT: And I can just say, out of

         12  3,000 members we've had 100 members, at least 100

         13  members do this program, and this is a serious

         14  commitment, it's four hours a day, seven days a week

         15  for weeks, and the reason why so many people are

         16  doing it and waiting to do it is because they're

         17  desperate, and they've seen it work.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Great. Thank you

         19  very much. Thank you.

         20                 And the last panel for today is

         21  Lieutenant Eddie Boles, UFOA.

         22                 Lieutenant, thank you very much for

         23  being here and for your patience.

         24                 MR. BOLES: Good afternoon. My name is

         25  Eddie Boles, Lieutenant Eddie Boles. I'm here on
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          2  behalf of UFOA President John McDonald. UFOA

          3  represents 2,500 Lieutenants, Captains, Battalion

          4  Chiefs, Deputy Chiefs, Medical Officers and

          5  Supervising Fire Marshals of the FDNY.

          6                 My apologies for getting here so

          7  late. As you know, we are tied up with many, many

          8  issues these days, and I spent half my day down at

          9  headquarters today and half my day other places, so

         10  I appreciate the opportunity given to both

         11  committees today, and I know this is the third such

         12  hearing on this very, very important issue, and I

         13  appreciate your persistence and hanging in there

         14  with us. We really do appreciate it.

         15                 Our union has been proactive and

         16  supportive seeking legislation, whether it be from

         17  the City, State or federal government to provide

         18  necessary funding for the monitoring, diagnosis and

         19  treatment of our members who responded to work at

         20  the WTC site on and during the months after 9/11.

         21                 As you may be aware, more than 11,500

         22  firefighters participated in the work at Ground Zero

         23  in an extremely toxic atmosphere. To date, more than

         24  3,000 FDNY members have respiratory treatment, and

         25  more than 700 have developed permanent respiratory
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          2  disability, which has led to premature retirements.

          3                 Additionally, we have countless

          4  members battling various illnesses, including

          5  cancers, gastrointestinal, esophageal and sinus

          6  illnesses, both among our active and retired

          7  members.

          8                 Besides our members battling physical

          9  illnesses, nearly 14,000 FDNY members have sought

         10  counseling through the FDNY counseling unit with the

         11  CSU seeking an average of 260 cases per month,

         12  compared to an average of 50 cases per month before

         13  9/11.

         14                 So, as you see, the impact has not

         15  only been on physical illness, but also on the

         16  mental illness of our members.

         17                 Dr. Kelly and Dr. Prezant, the Chief

         18  Medical Officers of the FDNY, have done an exemplary

         19  job in overseeing the healthcare of our members

         20  since 9/11. Both doctors have worked tirelessly on

         21  addressing the complexity of delivering healthcare

         22  to our members, as well as monitoring the effects

         23  from their exposure. They lead one of the three

         24  Centers of Excellence for WTC but their efforts need

         25  to be supplemented with funding to keep it
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          2  operating.

          3                 One very positive program they have

          4  implemented with a $25 million grant, which has been

          5  supplemented again, was providing a prescription

          6  drug program for our members. Before this program,

          7  the cost of dealing with a WTC illness was being

          8  shouldered by the member and our union. Co-payments

          9  from health carriers and prescription drug costs

         10  were being directly paid by our members and the

         11  unions. These costs are usually in the thousands of

         12  dollars. So, members not only have to endure the

         13  emotional physical stresses associated with their

         14  illnesses, but they also deal with the financial

         15  strain incurred by illnesses.

         16                 If you remember, the last time I

         17  testified on March 30th, I talked about two such

         18  members. One of our members who had died from

         19  pancreatic cancer, from working at the Ground Zero

         20  for over four months, and then we have another

         21  member who is still seeking to get in the lung organ

         22  donation program.

         23                 Members of our executive board have

         24  made several trips to Washington D.C. to lobby for

         25  the 9/11 Heroes Health Improvement Act. We are
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          2  grateful for the persistent efforts of many of our

          3  local legislators Senators Clinton and Schumer and

          4  Congressmembers Nadler, Maloney and Fossella, and we

          5  applaud their united lobbying for bipartisan support

          6  on this important bill.

          7                 Additionally, we are thankful for the

          8  support from Mayor Bloomberg and his staff,

          9  especially Deputy Mayor Skyler, who are fighting for

         10  support. The 9/11 Heroes Health Improvement Act is a

         11  historic bill that will play a substantial role in

         12  relieving the financial strain on our members and

         13  their families. This bill will address the modern

         14  diagnosis and treatment of WTC illnesses, which will

         15  help reduce or eliminate the financial worries of

         16  dealing with an illness.

         17                 Additionally, this bill will help

         18  save lives since it will promote more careful

         19  monitoring and early medical intervention and

         20  treatment of those who become ill.

         21                 This bill symbolizes the commitment

         22  of our federal government to those whose self-less

         23  acts helped to rebuild this nation after such a

         24  horrific blow.

         25                 The complexity of dealing with the
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          2  health issues of WTC is monumental. I compliment the

          3  two Committees' effort in addressing many of those

          4  issues, but what we need is the entire City

          5  government, City agencies, the unions and our

          6  members to join as one and collectively lobby the

          7  federal government to do the right thing and pass

          8  the 9/11 Heroes Health Improvement Act, which will

          9  provide nearly $2 billion to monitor, diagnose and

         10  treat all New Yorkers affected by 9/11.

         11                 The citizens of New York City

         12  provided the first line of defense for the entire

         13  country when our country was attacked on 9/11. Now

         14  the entire country must step up and assist our City

         15  for the necessary funding to help the citizens who

         16  become ill from this horrific chapter in our

         17  history.

         18                 Thank you, again, for allowing me the

         19  opportunity to speak.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Lieutenant

         21  Boles, thank you very much for your testimony, and

         22  again, for the work that you do for this City and

         23  your members we thank you, as well.

         24                 The prior hearing that the Labor

         25  Committee had on this issue, alcohol and drug use,
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          2  because of the side effects of the tragedy of 9/11

          3  was an issue that was raised at that hearing

          4  regarding FDNY. How is the FDNY dealing with those

          5  cases, of, you know, members with alcohol and drug

          6  issues in light of the 9/11 tragedy?

          7                 MR. BOLES: Actually the Counseling

          8  Unit has expanded. They have several satellite

          9  programs that are available for our members. They

         10  have peer counselors which have been very, very

         11  helpful. Unfortunately, when there is a situation

         12  with alcohol or drug abuse, there is still a zero

         13  drug policy that exists, still random drug testing

         14  that exists, which we're not opposed to. But what we

         15  are opposed to is that if you have a member,

         16  particularly members that have been on the job for

         17  18, 19 years, maybe even 20 years, and when they

         18  have a drug and alcohol problem, and you know one of

         19  the things, if a person has a drug and alcohol

         20  problem, is that there is a failure to admit it. You

         21  really don't admit to your problem until something

         22  very bad happens.

         23                 So, a lot of times they're not

         24  seeking the necessary help. And let's say that

         25  person now has an incident which there, maybe they
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          2  test positively for drugs, or there is an incident

          3  with alcohol, unfortunately our Department will

          4  treat that person as guilty before being proven

          5  innocent, and with the zero tolerance policy they

          6  will fire them and possibly even jeopardize their

          7  pension if they are caught testing once positively

          8  for drugs. So that's an issue that I think our

          9  Department needs to address, that there has to be

         10  some sort of leniency and an opportunity, even if

         11  the person has tested positive even once, that there

         12  should be an opportunity that they seek help.

         13  Because as I said earlier, a lot of times people who

         14  are suffering from a problem, a substance abuse

         15  problem, will not seek the help until they fall flat

         16  on their face. And certainly if you're faced with

         17  losing your pension and your job, that's something

         18  that should be taken in consideration.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do your members

         20  have any problems with the allocated time to go get

         21  monitored or treated. Monitored, it doesn't cover

         22  treatment yet. The time off to go get, again,

         23  monitored and registered? Do your members have any

         24  problem with that?

         25                 MR. BOLES: No. No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

          3                 Council Member Sears.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I am a little

          5  confused about something, so bear with me for a

          6  moment.

          7                 MR. BOLES: Join the club.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: If your members

          9  are having prescribed, or they're taking drugs,

         10  let's hypothetically speak for a moment, and they're

         11  tested for that and you find they're having drugs,

         12  in the meantime, if they are treated, as is the case

         13  for of the experiences that they've had and the

         14  health experiences after 9/11, those drugs are also

         15  going to show up. So, how do they separate what is

         16  being administered for health reasons, and the

         17  others which may be because of addiction?

         18                 MR. BOLES: If they are --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I don't know

         20  how that's done. That's why I asked the question.

         21                 MR. BOLES:-- Tested, if they are

         22  tested, part of the testing procedure is to list the

         23  medications that you're on. So, that list, they

         24  would furnish that list to whoever is doing the

         25  testing.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And then when

          3  they get the results, those drugs that are listed

          4  are removed?

          5                 MR. BOLES: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: From a rather

          7  derogatory report?

          8                 MR. BOLES: As far as we know. We

          9  don't actually do the testing, unfortunately, we

         10  only hear about it after the fact, but those drugs,

         11  if they are on prescribed medications, those drugs

         12  are supposed to be removed, if they are found

         13  positive, they're supposed to be removed from the

         14  list.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: If someone

         16  questions the results, do you have a process?

         17                 MR. BOLES: Yes, there is a process

         18  where they can be -- that sample can be sent to an

         19  independent lab. Unfortunately, it's at the expense

         20  of the member who is being tested.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. I just

         22  think that all of us have had different tests at one

         23  time or another, there is no question that sometimes

         24  they come back with another health indices that

         25  isn't at all related with what the patient is
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          2  taking. So, it seems to me when you're really doing

          3  drug testing, and you're taking drugs, there's a lot

          4  of room there, for some miscalculations, let me put

          5  it that way.

          6                 Really I think that's a very major

          7  issue, and I don't know if that's taking up with

          8  your union or whatever?

          9                 I mean, I've been in health care for

         10  a long time. I've run hospitals, I know labs, I know

         11  what they do, how they do it, and what can happen

         12  with them. And they've been in all three forms of

         13  hospitals. And I know what can happen and there is a

         14  process for that. Not intentionally. It depends just

         15  on whether the equipment can even handle that kind

         16  of testing. So that's why I really ask that

         17  question.

         18                 MR. BOLES: And it's a very important

         19  point. I appreciate you asking that question. And,

         20  again, we will continue to fight in labor

         21  management, but we certainly could always use the

         22  assistance of City Council and City Hall to help

         23  fight the zero tolerance policy of our members.

         24                 Because what happens is, when you

         25  take away their job, and you're taking away their
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          2  pension, which runs in the millions of dollars at

          3  the end of the day, you're not only hurting that

          4  member severely, you're also hurting their family.

          5  And again, many of our members are suffering from

          6  the health affects, not only the health affects, but

          7  also the mental affects from 9/11, and they have not

          8  sought, they have not sought the necessary

          9  counseling because of the existent negative stigma

         10  that's still attached when someone goes to seek

         11  counseling.

         12                 And in the profession we are, it's a

         13  profession that you have to exemplify a lot of

         14  courage and kismo, and they're not that easily,

         15  they're not going to go that easily to seek the help

         16  they probably need.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: No, that's not

         18  an easy thing to do for different reasons, which I

         19  won't go into here. Is there any sensitivity

         20  training within the Department for those just to

         21  review?

         22                 First I think I should say, are there

         23  sensitive trainings for the men? Because you're

         24  dealing under very difficult conditions, besides the

         25  time off they may have, what does the Department do
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          2  from a health aspect, in terms of just when I say

          3  heightening the level of sensitivity, what they're

          4  going through? I mean, nursing does it, medicine

          5  does it, doctors do it, so I'm asking if the

          6  Department does that for their staff, their members?

          7                 MR. BOLES: Very little.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Very little?

          9                 MR. BOLES: Very little.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: If at all?

         11                 MR. BOLES: There are peer counselors.

         12  Unfortunately our job is mostly reactionary, rather

         13  than preventive, rather than going to preventative

         14  programs, and they do provide counselors when there

         15  is a tragic event, like a fatal fire. Or they'll

         16  have peer counselors go around in, not a scheduled

         17  basis, but a random basis. They'll go to different

         18  firehouses and peer counselors will sit down in the

         19  kitchen and talk to the members about any issues and

         20  about the availability of counseling services.

         21                 But, again, there is nothing, nothing

         22  of my knowledge, concrete program, that deals with

         23  something like PTSD, or actually help to prevent

         24  PTSD. Particularly we're in an environment that we

         25  deal with very, very high emotional issues every
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          2  single day. We deal with death on a very, very

          3  regular basis. We deal with extremely grotesque type

          4  of incidents on a daily basis, that a lot of our

          5  members were never trained for, or never get

          6  additional training for.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Would your

          8  members avail themselves of it, if it were

          9  available?

         10                 Because it's time consuming, they may

         11  have to do it at different times.

         12                 MR. BOLES: That's a great question.

         13  I'm not sure. I don't know.

         14                 Maybe there's --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I think maybe

         16  you ought to find out.

         17                 MR. BOLES: Maybe there's

         18  opportunities in other, like, for example, when

         19  they're in probie school, could be part of the

         20  training program in probie school, could be part of

         21  our first line supervisor training program, when

         22  they get newly promoted to lieutenant, get a

         23  refresher in the Captain's management, so there's

         24  opportunities I believe that they can infuse it into

         25  training programs that already exist.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I think that's

          3  worth looking into.

          4                 Thank you very much.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          7  Council Member Sears.

          8                 Lieutenant, again, thank you very

          9  much. I know you participated in a number of these

         10  hearings, and each and every time I appreciate it,

         11  and I look forward to working with you and the

         12  Administration on it.

         13                 I want to thank the Administration

         14  for still being here and listening to the testimony

         15  and the issues. And, again, I also want to

         16  personally thank my colleague, Joel Rivera, Chairman

         17  of the Health Committee, for chairing this hearing

         18  with the Labor Committee today. Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON RIVERA: Thank you.

         20                 MR. BOLES: We appreciate your support

         21  always. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         23                 We do look forward to following up

         24  this hearing in this Committee, and hopefully along

         25  with the Health Committee we'll have a follow-up
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          2  hearing, roughly six or so months from now, to

          3  update any further progress made. But thank you very

          4  much, ladies and gentlemen, for being with us today.

          5                 Meeting adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 3:52 p.m.)
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